


Major Programs

Solar School project    As a leading global producer of polysilicon for solar PV 
systems, we believe that solar power has a major role to play in how society will use 
energy in the future. In April 2011, we announced the Solar School project, a five-year, 
KRW 10.5 billion initiative to install basic solar PV systems at 300 schools across Korea. 
The project is intended to give students a unique educational opportunity to learn first-
hand the benefits of solar PV energy as well as help meet a portion of each school’s 
power needs. As of year-end, we had completed installation of systems at 40 schools.

Songam Foundation    Founded in 1979, the Songam Foundation sponsors bi-
annual touring art exhibitions as well as scholarship programs. In 2011, the foundation 
introduced a new scholarship program designed to benefit students from low-income, 
multi-cultural families. The 2011 beneficiaries included eight college-age students, 
who received four-year scholarships valued at KRW 32 million each, and 22 high-school 
students, who received three-year tuition scholarships.

OCI Museum of Art    The OCI Museum of Art hosts a variety of cultural and arts 
exhibitions throughout the year, giving artists of all ages and genres a chance to 
showcase their creativity. In addition to the OCI Young Artist program launched in 
2009, the museum opened an artist-in-residency program in Incheon in April 2011 that 
currently hosts eight up-and-coming artists. In June 2011, the museum hosted the 16th 
Space International Print Biennial, attracting more than 600 works from over 300 artists 
from 45 countries.

Community Engagement    In addition to the programs mentioned above, we 
engage our local communities in many other ways. We encourage employees to 
donate a small portion of their paychecks for worthy organizations or projects in 
their communities through our Angel campaign. We help improve the standard of 
living in the rural farming community of Manjong through our One Company, One 
Village program, participating in the annual garlic and red pepper harvests as well as 
buying those products. We volunteer as guide runners for the blind twice a year. We 
also participate in a variety of environmental clean-up drives within our communities, 
helping keep streams, trails, and roads around our plants cleaner and greener.

OCI Family Program    We believe in giving the younger members of our family 
the opportunity to make a difference in their communities. Each summer and winter 
vacation, we organize three community service programs for the school-age children 
of our employees in partnership with organizations like Habitat for Humanity, the 
Special Olympics, and the Korean Red Cross. In 2011, a team of college-age students 
volunteered part of their summer vacation to assist Korean athletes during the 2011 
Special Olympics World Summer Games in Athens.

Social Responsibility
At OCI, we believe in working together to create happier and healthier communities. Each 

of our corporate social responsibility programs and initiatives is based on the principles of 

authenticity, transparency, employee participation, continuity, and community focus. Since 

establishing our CSR team in 2009, we have steadily increased the support and scope of these 

activities. In 2011, we invested over KRW 8.3 billion in community service, social welfare, 

culture and art, and education and scholarship programs to make our local communities better 

places to live.
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“�Beyond teaching students the 
benefits of solar power and 
renewable energy, we hope 
our Solar School initiative 
will inspire tomorrow’s green 
innovations and innovators.”

Ki Ha Yoo
Senior Manager, RE New Business Team

1  �Solar School lesson at Naega 	
Elementary School 

2  �Red pepper harvest at Manjong 	
village
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Major Programs

Global Vision    We aim to be a global leader in green energy and chemicals. We 

constantly innovate to produce products that deliver superior satisfaction to all our 

stakeholders. We seize opportunities with an entrepreneurial spirit and thorough 

preparation as we constantly reinvent ourselves to create a better tomorrow. Backed 

by a corporate culture that is open and respects diversity, we secure leadership in core 

technologies by pursuing innovation, operational excellence, and resource optimization.

Global Workforce    As a company that serves customers around the world, a global 

workforce is crucial to our success. In addition to tapping top home-grown talent for 

our local operations, we actively recruit experienced professionals, industry specialists, 

and interns from around the globe as we build an organization that is truly global in 

every respect. English is our working language, and we continue to strengthen support 

programs to equip our people with the communication skills they need to compete and 

excel in the global marketplace.

Professional Development    We invest significantly in our human capital to sharpen 

our competitiveness through a broad range of online and offline training programs run 

in-house as well as through respected institutions of higher learning. All manager-level 

and higher employees are required to complete the OCI MBA program, a tailored, 

case-study-based program offered in cooperation with Yonsei University in Seoul. 

We also encourage top-level managers to pursue MBAs or PhDs at home or abroad.

Jhi-Ihn-Yong Awards    We believe in recognizing excellence at all levels of our 

organization. Named after the Korean words for wisdom, benevolence, and courage, 

the annual Jhi-Ihn-Yong Awards recognize the three OCI people who have best 

exemplified these qualities during the year. 

In 2011, the Jhi Award was awarded for cost and management efficiencies gained from 

the adoption of automated polysilicon packaging facilities. The Ihn Award was awarded 

for the development of analysis methods and process improvements related to new 

business development. The Yong Award was awarded for enhancing sales and profit by 

procuring competitively-priced materials from outside suppliers.

 

Personnel Responsibility
At OCI, our vision of being a global leader in our core businesses is changing the fabric of our 

organization. We believe that the caliber and quality of our people are key to generating 

sustainable growth over the long term. This is why we actively invest in recruiting the best and 

brightest talent from around the world as well as providing a broad range of educational and 

training opportunities that enable our people to expand their horizons and ultimately achieve 

their full potential.
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“�My time as an intern at OCI 
headquarters in Seoul has been 		
�a wonderful experience. 

  �I’ve grown professionally and 
personally here, and will always 
consider myself a member of 	
the OCI family.”

Irina Dyu
Intern, Business Development Team 1

1  �2H 2010 Global Internship 		
program participants

2  �Session 6 2011 OCI MBA 		
commencement ceremony
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To the Shareholders and the Board of 
Directors of OCI Company Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of OCI Company Ltd. and subsidiaries 

(the “Company”). The financial statements consist of the consolidated statements of financial position as 

of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010, respectively, and the related consolidated statements 

of income, consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity and consolidated statements of 

cash flows, all expressed in Korean won, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 

financial statements and our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 

statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of 

Korea. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 

test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well 

as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 

basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Company as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010, respectively, and the 

results of its operations and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, in 

conformity with Korean International Financial Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS”).  

Deloitte Anjin LLC
14FI., Hanwha Securities Bldg. 23-5, Yoido-dong, Youngdeungpo-gu, Seoul, 150-717, Korea

Tel: +82(2)6676 1000  |  Fax: +82(2) 6674 2114  |  www.deloitteanjin.co.kr

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT                          
English Translation of a Report Originally Issued in Korean

Notice to Readers

This report is effective as of March 13, 2012, the auditors' report date. Certain subsequent events or circumstances may have 

occurred between the auditors' report date and the time the auditors' report is read. Such events or circumstances could significantly 

affect the accompanying financial statements and may result in modifications to the auditors’ report.

March 13, 2012

Continued

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

	 Notes	 December 31, 2011	  December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

Assets

current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 	 6/29/30	 ￦     390,191,268	 ￦    421,253,550	 ￦     424,792,911

Short-term financial assets  	 7/29/30	 458,766,733	 198,184,075	 79,786,662

Trade and other accounts receivable	 8/29/30	 614,566,769	 459,408,656	 370,009,749

Inventories	 9	 440,874,349	 295,238,011	 263,731,664

Derivative assets	 29/30	 951,923	 1,775,191	 7,416,014

Other current assets	 15	 80,350,796	 40,480,825	 51,010,075

		  1,985,701,838	 1,416,340,308	 1,196,747,075

Non-current assets:

Long-term financial assets 	 7/29/30	 60,034,065	 68,284,559	 63,509,618

Investments in jointly controlled 	

  entities and associates	 10/12	 89,351,670	 80,880,564	 70,829,212

Trade and other accounts receivable	 8/29/30	 6,944,535	 6,509,719	 7,122,648

Investment property 	 14	 93,242,329	 97,976,162	 92,639,879

Property, plant and equipment	 5/11/12	 4,807,238,694	 3,779,838,787	 3,032,671,501

Intangible assets	 5/13	 145,243,715	 120,746,050	 121,856,623

Deferred tax assets	 26	 11,004,738	 20,084,843	 15,986,150

Other non-current assets	 15	 6,251,562	 5,554,976	 4,912,243

		  5,219,311,308	 4,179,875,660	 3,409,527,874

TOTAL ASSETS 		  ￦ 7,205,013,146	 ￦ 5,596,215,968	 ￦ 4,606,274,949

Korean won in thousands 

As of December 31, 2011 and 
2010 and January 1, 2010
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

	 Notes	 December 31, 2011	  December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

Liabilities

Current liabilities:

Current financial liabilities 	 16/29/30	 ￦    641,955,041	 ￦    759,848,052	 ￦    910,892,304

Trade and other accounts payable	 17/29	 663,807,318	 726,310,954	 391,339,958

Derivative liabilities	 29/30	 1,804,886	 304,004	 12,122

Income tax payable	 26	 137,156,521	 97,730,187	 39,502,021

Other current liabilities	 20	 7,745,083	 8,107,324	 7,518,974

		  1,452,468,849	 1,592,300,521	 1,349,265,379

Non-current liabilities:

Non-current financial liabilities	 16/29/30	 860,944,362	 825,513,715	 699,498,286

Trade and other accounts payable	 17/29	 31,208,656	 14,820,036	 14,982,722

Provisions 	 19	 10,402,518	 5,464,345	 28,567,547

Retirement benefit obligation	 18	 111,307,673	 71,434,472	 73,558,026

Deferred tax liabilities 	 26	 19,334,787	 39,915,608	 31,955,533

Other non-current liabilities	 20	 999,207,717	 759,034,962	 731,967,758

		  2,032,405,713	 1,716,183,138	 1,580,529,872

TOTAL LIABILITIES 		  3,484,874,562	  3,308,483,659	 2,929,795,251

Shareholders' equity

Shareholders' equity:

Common stock 	 22	 127,246,855	 121,606,450	 120,421,620

Capital surplus 	 22	 824,414,074	 202,780,644	 193,510,904

Capital adjustments 	 22	 (10,285)	 (90,590,918)	 (99,177,785)

Accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss)	 22	 18,801,722	 (15,106,039)	 (6,519,063)

Retained earnings	 22	 2,364,196,268	 1,783,629,394	 1,226,296,683

		  3,334,648,634	 2,002,319,531	 1,434,532,359

Non-controlling interests		  385,489,950	 285,412,778	 241,947,339

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY	 	 3,720,138,584	 2,287,732,309	 1,676,479,698

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND	 	
  SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY	 	  ￦    7,205,013,146	 ￦  5,596,215,968	 ￦  4,606,274,949

Korean won in thousands

As of December 31, 2011 and 
2010 and January 1, 2010

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Korean won in thousands,
 except for income per share data

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010
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	 Notes 	 2011 	 2010

Sales	 5/23	 ￦ 4,275,871,267	 ￦ 3,322,059,557

Cost of sales 	 24	 2,797,635,497	 2,103,542,584

Gross profit		  1,478,235,770	 1,218,516,973

Selling and administrative expenses	 24	 360,319,821	 325,281,147

Other operating income	 25	 8,501,743	 3,530,665

Other operating expense	 25	 12,367,864	 36,439,002

	

Operating income	 5	 1,114,049,828	 860,327,489

Financial income 	 25/29	 133,395,867	 85,129,132

Financial cost 	 25/29	 209,343,274	 138,680,122

Share of profits of jointly controlled 	

  entities and associates	 10	 11,330,175	 13,435,513

Other non-operating income	 25	 9,782,972	 5,753,723

Other non-operating expenses	 25	 15,893,493	 8,334,928

			 

Income before income tax		  1,043,322,075	 817,630,807

Income tax expense 	 26	 178,583,772	 148,699,112

Net income		  ￦    864,738,303	 ￦    668,931,695

Net income attributable to :			 

Owners of the Company		  ￦    768,069,375	 ￦    607,912,012

Non-controlling interests		  ￦     96,668,928	 ￦      61,019,683

	

Net income per share (In Korean Won) 			 

Basic income per share	 27	 ￦           32,588	 ￦           27,008

Diluted income per share	 27	 ￦           32,588	 ￦             26,761



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Korean won in thousands

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

	 Notes	 2011 	 2010

NET INCOME		  ￦  864,738,303	 ￦ 668,931,695

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS):			 

Gain (loss) on valuation of 

  available-for-sale financial assets	 29	 29,490,952	 (3,581,310)

Share of other comprehensive income of 

  jointly controlled entities and associates	 10	 (560,121)	 (616,996)

Gain (loss) on overseas operations translation		  9,735,691	 (6,462,332)

Actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit plans	 18	 (33,334,622)	 (6,685,166)

Gain on valuation of derivatives	 29	 (235,767)	 348,757

Others		  (1,186,203)	 (6,270)

		  3,909,930	 (17,003,317)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME		  ￦ 868,648,233	 ￦  651,928,378

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:			 

Owners of the Company		  ￦  771,688,092	 ￦  593,671,193

Non-controlling interests		  ￦    96,960,141	 ￦      58,257,185

Continued

Korean won in thousands

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
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					    	 Accumulated				  
						     other 			   Non- 	 Total
			  Capital 	 Capital	C apital 	 comprehensive 	R etained	 Owners of  	 controlling	 shareholders’
		 Notes	 stock	 surplus	 adjustments	 loss (gain)	 earnings	 the Company	 interests	 equity

January 1, 2010		  ￦ 120,421,620	 ￦ 193,510,904	 ￦  (99,177,785)	 ￦   (6,519,063)	 ￦1,226,296,683	 ￦ 1,434,532,359	 ￦ 241,947,339	 ￦ 1,676,479,698

Dividends						      (44,925,458)	 (44,925,458)	 (23,141,350)	 (68,066,808)

Net income						      607,912,012	 607,912,012	 61,019,683	 668,931,695

Stock warrants

  exercised		  1,184,830	 6,307,692				    7,492,522		  7,492,522

Exercise of 

  convertible bonds			   1,900,418				    1,900,418	 8,349,604	 10,250,022

Treasury stock			   1,061,630	 5,996,121			   7,057,751		  7,057,751

Stock option				    2,590,746			   2,590,746		  2,590,746

Loss on valuation 

  of available-for-										        

  sale securities					     (3,581,310)		  (3,581,310)		  (3,581,310)

Jointly controlled

  entities and									          

  associates					     (616,996)		  (616,996)		  (616,996)

Gain (loss) on 

  overseas operations

  translation 	   29				    (4,731,157)		  (4,731,157)	 (1,731,175)	 (6,462,332)

Gain (loss) on 

  valuation								      

  of derivatives	  18	  			   348,757		  348,757		  348,757

Actuarial gains (losses) 

  on defined 

  benefit plans						      (5,653,843)	 (5,653,843)	 (1,031,323)	 (6,685,166)

Others					     (6,270)		  (6,270)		  (6,270)

December 31, 2010		  ￦121,606,450	 ￦202,780,644	 ￦(90,590,918)	 ￦(15,106,039)	 ￦1,783,629,394	 ￦2,002,319,531	 ￦285,412,778	 ￦2,287,732,309



	 	 Year ended December 31

	 Notes 	 2011 	 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	

Cash generated from operating activities	 32	 ￦ 1,587,491,579	 ￦ 1,161,812,604

Interest income received		  32,607,098	 13,797,163

Interest expense paid		  (73,241,085)	 (75,984,301)

Dividends income received		  7,844,011	 6,172,334

Income taxes paid		  (180,725,386)	 (84,878,973)

Net cash provided by operating activities		  1,373,976,217	 1,020,918,827

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Decrease in short-term financial instruments		  1,152,920,000	 744,645,112

Increase in short-term financial instruments		  (1,413,239,963)	 (862,820,000)

Decrease in short-term loans		  264,791	 1,573,433

Increase in short-term loans		  (221,050)	 (139,510)

Decrease in held-to-maturity financial investment		  264,075	 236,078

Increase in held-to-maturity financial investment		  (90,594)	 (7,824,723)

Decrease in available-for-sale financial assets		  19,714,259	 238,824

Increase in available-for-sale financial assets		  (15,504,172)	 - 

Decrease in long-term financial instruments		  -	 1,508,360

Increase in long-term financial instruments		  (16,045)	 - 

Decrease in long-term loans		  1,175	 27,600

Increase in long-term loans		  (518,980)	 - 

Disposal in investment in properties		  75,000	 249,000

Acquisition of investment in properties		  (285,421)	 (6,263,585)

Disposal of property, plant and equipment		  1,178,714	 18,447,019

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment		  (1,622,839,605)	 (838,691,746)

Disposal of intangible assets		  727,273	 2,357

Acquisition of intangible assets	 	 (28,341,744)	 (4,002,862)

Acquisition of investments in jointly 

  controlled entities and associates		  (4,409,042)	 -

Increase in other non-current assets		  (307,146)	 (332,727)

Net cash used in investment activities		  (1,910,628,475)	 (953,147,370)

Continued

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Korean won in thousands

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

			  			   Accumulated				  
						     other 			   Non- 	 Total
			  Capital 	 Capital	C apital 	comprehensive 	R etained	 Owners of  	 controlling	 shareholders’
		 Notes	 stock	 surplus	 adjustments	 loss (gain)	 earnings	 the Company	 interests	 equity

January 1, 2011		  ￦121,606,450	 ￦202,780,644	 ￦ (90,590,918)	 ￦(15,106,039)	 ￦ 1,783,629,394	 ￦ 2,002,319,531	  ￦ 285,412,778	 ￦ 2,287,732,309

Dividends						      (73,971,856)	 (73,971,856)	 (31,991,774)	 (105,963,630)

Net income						      768,069,375	 768,069,375	 96,668,928	 864,738,303

Paid-in capital 

  increase 	  22	 5,640,405	 557,266,197				    562,906,602	 20,011,269	 582,917,871

Incorporation of

  subsidiaries							       -	 15,097,536	 15,097,536

Treasury stock 	  22		  64,367,233	 94,975,338		  (83,241,601)	 76,100,970		  76,100,970

Stock option				    (4,370,904)			   (4,370,904)		  (4,370,904)

Gain (loss) on valuation 

  of available-for-sale 

  financial assets 	  29				    29,490,952		  29,490,952		  29,490,952

Jointly controlled

  entities and 

  associates  	  10				    (560,121)		  (560,121)		  (560,121)

Translation gain (loss)

  on overseas 

  operation					     6,252,996		  6,252,996	 3,482,695	 9,735,691

Gain (loss) on 

  valuation							     

  of derivatives 	  				    (211,576)		  (211,576)	 (24,191)	 (235,767)

Actuarial gains (losses) 

  on defined 

  benefit plans	  18					     (30,289,044)	 (30,289,044)	 (3,045,578)	 (33,334,622)

Others				    (23,801)	 (1,064,490)		  (1,088,291)	 (121,713)	 (1,210,004)

December 31, 2011		  ￦127,246,855	 ￦824,414,074	 ￦     (10,285)	 ￦ 18,801,722	 ￦2,364,196,268	￦3,334,648,634	 ￦385,489,950	￦3,720,138,584 

Korean won in thousands

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

1  �GENERAL INFORMATION

The Parent
OCI Company Ltd. (formerly known as Oriental Chemical Industries) (the “Parent”) was incorporated in accordance with the Commer-

cial Code of Korea on August 5, 1959, to manufacture and sell soda ash and related products. In 1976, the Parent listed its common 

shares on the Korea Exchange. On May 1, 2001, the Parent merged with Korea Steel Chemical Company and changed its name to DC 

Chemical Co., Ltd. Furthermore, on May 1, 2008, the Parent spun off its Incheon business segment and on April 1, 2009 changed its 

name to OCI Company Ltd.

As of May 30, 2011, the Parent listed Global Depository Receipts (“GDRs”) on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Ltd. through 

a capital increase and sale of its treasury stocks. 

The Parent is headquartered in Sogong-Dong 50, Jung-Gu, Seoul, Korea and its common stock amounts to ￦127,246,855 thousand 

as of December 31, 2011.

Consolidated Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries consolidated in the accompanying financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the 

“Company”) as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

			N  umber of 	 Percentage of 	  	 Financial

Subsidiaries	 Business	 shares (*1)	 ownership (*1)	 Location	 year end

OCI Enterprises Inc.	 Holding company	 112,578	 89.74%	 USA	 Dec. 31

OCI Chemical Corp.	 Sales agency of OCI Wyoming L.P.	 1,100	 100.00%	 USA	 Dec. 31

OCI Wyoming Holding Co., Ltd.	 Holding company	 1,000	 100.00%	 USA	 Dec. 31

OCI Wyoming Co., Ltd.	 Holding company	 32,640	 80.00%	 USA	 Dec. 31

OCI Wyoming L.P.	 Manufactures and sells soda ash	 -	 51.49%	 USA	 Dec. 31

OCI Chemical Europe N.V.	 Sells soda ash	 2,500	 100.00%	 Belgium	 Dec. 31

OCI Energy LLC	 Holding company	 -	 100.00%	 USA	 Dec. 31

OCI Solar Power LLC	 Development of solar

		   generation equipment	 -	 76.00%	 USA	 Dec. 31

OCI Materials Co., Ltd. (*2)	 Manufactures and sells industrial gas	 5,178,535	 49.10%	 Korea	 Dec. 31

OCI Materials Taiwan Co., Ltd.	 Sells industrial gas	 2,000,000	 100.00%	 Taiwan	 Dec. 31

OCI Materials Japan Co., Ltd.	 Sells industrial gas	 4,989	 95.00%	 Japan	 Dec. 31

JIANGSU OCI Materials Co., Ltd.	 Manufactures and sells industrial gas	 -	 100.00%	 China	 Dec. 31

Kosvida Agrochemical Co., Ltd.	 Manufactures and sells agricultural 

		   chemical raw materials	 -	 79.35%	 Vietnam	 Dec. 31

Zhejiang OCI Co., Ltd.	 Manufactures and sells 

		   Sodium Carbonate Peroxyhydrate	 -	 100.00%	 China	 Dec. 31

DCRE Co., Ltd.	 Manufactures and sells chemical raw 

		   materials and analytical reagent, 

		   and develops real estate	 10,781,250	 100.00%	 Korea	 Dec. 31

Shandong OCI Co., Ltd.	 Manufactures and sells coal tar	 -	 80.00%	 China	 Dec. 31

Elpion Co., Ltd.	 Manufactures and sells materials 

		   related to solar energy	 65,314,310	 63.10%	 Korea	 Dec. 31

Elpion Silicon Sdn. Bhd.	 Manufactures and sells materials 

		   related to solar energy	 3,400,840	 100.00%	 Malaysia	 Dec. 31

	 	 Year ended December 31

	 Notes 	 2011 	 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from short-term borrowings		  ￦    43,594,445	 ￦   124,591,449

Repayment of short-term borrowings		  (87,570,682)	 (79,853,150)

Repayment of current portions

  of long-term financial liabilities		  (138,567,674)	 (429,498,934)

Proceeds from long-term borrowings		  99,527,138	 174,293,242

Repayment of long-term borrowings		  (2,179,817)	 (52,658)

Proceeds from long-term debenture		  -	 199,010,000

Proceeds from government subsidies		  47,795	 73,650

Increase in paid-in capital		  599,552,629	 3,561,324

Disposal of treasury stock		  180,030,809	 6,968,512

Acquisition of treasury stock		  (83,241,601)	 -

Payment of dividends		  (105,963,631)	 (69,753,116)

Net cash provided by (used in)
  financing activities		  505,229,411	 (70,659,681)
			 

CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
  DUE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION		  360,565	 (651,137)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 
  AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		  (31,062,282)	 (3,539,361)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
  BEGINNING OF THE YEAR	 6	 421,253,550	 424,792,911

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF THE YEAR	 6	 ￦ 390,191,268	 ￦ 421,253,550

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Korean won in thousands

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

Jointly controlled entities and associates 
Jointly controlled entities and associates accounted for under the equity method in the consolidated financial statements 

as of December 31, 2011 are as follows: 

(*1) Entity is a jointly controlled entity which the Company accounts for under the equity method.

Changes in scope of consolidation
For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company newly acquired OCI Energy LLC, OCI Solar Power LLC, JIANGSU OCI Materials Co., 

Ltd., Elpion Silicon Sdn. Bhd., OCI China Co., Ltd., Tangshan OCI Sunfar Chemical Co., Ltd. and OCI Japan Co., Ltd.

Changes in scope of associates
For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company newly acquired Liaoning East Shine Chemical Technology Co., Ltd.

2  STANDARDS AFFECTING PRESENTATION 
AND DISCLOSURE AND SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Company maintains its official accounting records in Republic 

of Korean won (“Won”) and prepares consolidated financial state-

ments in conformity with Korean International Reporting Standards 

(“K-IFRS”), in the Korean language (Hangul). Accordingly, these 

consolidated financial statements are intended for use by those 

who are informed about K-IFRS and Korean practices. The accom-

panying consolidated financial statements have been condensed, 

restructured and translated into English with certain expanded de-

scriptions from the Korean language financial statements. Certain 

information included in the Korean language financial statements, 

but not required for a fair presentation of the Company’s financial 

position, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity 

or cash flows, is not presented in the accompanying consolidated 

financial statements. 

(1) Basis of Preparation

The Company has adopted the Korean International Financial Re-

porting Standards (“K-IFRS”) for the annual period beginning on 

January 1, 2011. In accordance with K-IFRS 1101 First-time adop-

tion of International Financial Reporting Standards, the transition 

date to K-IFRS is January 1, 2010. The significant accounting poli-

cies under K-IFRS followed by the Company in the preparation of 

its consolidated financial statements are summarized in Note 3. 

Currently, enactments and amendments of the K-IFRSs are in 

progress, and the financial information presented in the financial 

statements may change accordingly in the future. The Company 

has not applied the following new and revised K-IFRSs that have 

been issued but are not yet effective:

K- IFRS 1107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

– Transfers of Financial Assets

The amendments to K-IFRS 1107 increase the disclosure require-

ments for transactions involving transfers of financial assets. These 

amendments are intended to provide greater transparency around 

risk exposures when a financial asset is transferred but the trans-

feror retains some level of continuing exposure in the asset. The 

amendments also require disclosures where transfers of financial as-

sets are not evenly distributed throughout the period. K-IFRS 1107 

is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011. 

Amendments to K-IFRS 1012 Deferred Tax 

– Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendments to K-IFRS 1012 provide an exception to the gen-

eral principles in K-IFRS 1012 that the measurement of deferred 

tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should reflect the tax conse-

quences that would follow from the manner in which the entity 

expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset. Investment 

property or a non-depreciable asset measured using the revalua-

tion model in K-IFRS 1016 Property, Plant and Equipment, are pre-

sumed to be recovered through sale for the purposes of measur-

ing deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain 

circumstances. The amendments to K-IFRS 1012 are effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012.  

Jointly controlled entities		  	 Percentage of 	 	 Financial 
and associates		  Number of shares	 ownership	 Location	 year end

ORDEG Co., Ltd.		  294,574	 20.00%	 Korea	 Dec. 31

OCI-Ferro Co., Ltd. (*1)		  167,166	 50.00%	 Korea	 Dec. 31

OCI-SNF Co., Ltd. (*1)		  520,000	 50.00%	 Korea	 Dec. 31

Eko Peroxide LLC (*1)		  -	 50.00%	 USA	 Dec. 31

Liaoning East Shine Chemical 

  Technology Co., Ltd. (*1)		  -	 50.00%	 China	 Dec. 31
(*1) Includes indirect investments held by subsidiaries

(*2) �The Parent has the authority to determine the members of the board of directors, as a result the Parent is considered to have 

substantial control over the entity and have basis for consolidation.

The Parent owns the shares of OCI Chemical Corp., OCI Wyoming Holding Co., Ltd., OCI Wyoming Co., Ltd., OCI Wyoming L.P., OCI 

Chemical Europe N.V., OCI Energy LLC and OCI Solar Power LLC through OCI Enterprises Inc. and the shares of OCI Materials Taiwan 

Co., Ltd., OCI Materials Japan Co. Ltd. and JIANGSU OCI Materials Co., Ltd. through OCI Materials Co., Ltd. and the shares of Elpion 

Silicon Sdn. Bhd. through Elpion Co., Ltd. and the shares of Tangshan OCI Sunfar Chemical Co., Ltd. through OCI China Co., Ltd.

Financial statements of the Company’s major subsidiaries as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

			  Number of 	 Percentage of 		  Financial
Subsidiaries	 Business	 shares (*1)	 ownership (*1)	 Location 	 year end

OCI Information & 	 Invests and operates

  Communication Co., Ltd.	   information system	 200,000	 100.00%	 Korea	 Dec. 31

DCC(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.	 Sells materials related to solar energy	 -	 100.00%	 China	 Dec. 31

OCI Japan Co., Ltd.	 Sells materials related to solar energy	 7,999	 99.99%	 Japan	 Dec. 31

OCI China Co., Ltd.	 Holding company	 -	 100.00%	 China	 Dec. 31

Tangshan OCI Sunfar 	 Manufactures and sells materials

  Chemical Co., Ltd.	   related to Fumed silica	 -	 80.00%	 China	 Dec. 31

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(*1) Represents the entity’s consolidated financial statements for the period

				   Shareholders’		N  et income
Name of company	A ssets	L iabilities	 equity	 Sales	  (loss)

OCI Enterprises Inc. (*1) 	 ￦ 601,868,409	 ￦ 312,603,891	 ￦ 289,264,518	 ￦ 498,822,127	 ￦ 84,887,892

OCI Materials Co., Ltd. (*1)	 614,423,817	 287,092,289	 327,331,528	 296,493,541	 65,710,296

Kosvida Agrochemical Co., Ltd.	 20,406,990	 17,399,292	 3,007,698	 31,254,973	 354,045

Zhejiang OCI Co., Ltd.	 14,460,426	 11,069,510	 3,390,916	 14,226,185	 (1,532,159)

DCRE Co., Ltd.	 1,158,060,651	 468,155,897	 689,904,754	 33,190,322	 (35,179,953)

Shandong OCI Co., Ltd.	 97,272,946	 62,900,198	 34,372,748	 121,251,183	 3,571,728

Elpion Co., Ltd. (*1)	 159,521,307	 55,748,681	 103,772,626	 88,310,884	 15,720,892

OCI Information & 

  Communication Co., Ltd.	 7,896,126	 4,063,923	 3,832,203	 20,359,703	 1,306,814

DCC(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.	 9,968,000	 1,388,134	 8,579,866	 165,993,755	 1,704,783

OCI Japan Co., Ltd.	 2,482,917	 846,636	 1,636,281	 1,629,607	 421,020

OCI China Co., Ltd.	 12,033,566	 442,821	 11,590,745	 -	 -
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K-IFRS 1019 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

The amendments to K-IFRS 1019 change the accounting for defined 

benefit plans and termination benefits. The most significant change 

relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations 

and plan assets. The amendments require the recognition of changes 

in defined benefit obligations and in fair value of plan assets when 

they occur, and hence eliminate the 'corridor approach' permitted 

under the previous version of K-IFRS 1019 and accelerate the rec-

ognition of past service costs. The amendments to K-IFRS 1019 are 

effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 

and require retrospective application with certain exceptions. 

K-IFRS 1113 Fair Value Measurement

K-IFRS 1113 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value 

measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The 

standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring 

fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. 

K-IFRS 1113 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

January 1, 2013, with earlier application permitted. 

The Company does not anticipate that these amendments referred 

above will have a significant effect on the Company’s consolidated 

financial statements and disclosures.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the 

historical cost basis except certain non-current assets and finan-

cial instruments.

Major accounting policies used for the preparation of the consoli-

dated financial statements are stated below. Unless stated other-

wise, these accounting policies have been applied consistently to 

the financial statements for the current period and accompanying 

comparative period.

(2) Basis of preparing consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial 

statements of the Company and entities (including special pur-

pose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control 

is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the fi-

nancial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits 

from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of dur-

ing the year are included in the consolidated statement of com-

prehensive income from the effective date of acquisition and up to 

the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive 

income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company 

and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements 

of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those 

used the Company.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are 

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that 

do not result in the Company losing control over the subsidiaries are 

accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the 

Company’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted 

to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. 

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling 

interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid 

or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners 

of the Company.

When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss 

on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate 

of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of 

any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the 

assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any 

non-controlling interests. When assets of the subsidiary are carried 

at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain 

or loss has been recognized in other comprehensive income and 

accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognized in other 

comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted 

for as if the Company had directly disposed of the relevant assets 

(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained 

earnings). The fair value of any investment retained in the former 

subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized as the fair 

value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under K-IF-

RS 1039 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, 

when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in 

an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

(3) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition 

method. The consideration transferred in a business combination 

is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the ac-

quisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Company, 

liabilities incurred by the Company to the former owners of the ac-

quiree and the equity interests issued by the Company in exchange 

for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally 

recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the li-

abilities assumed are recognized at their fair value at the acquisition 

date, except that:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
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• �deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to 

employee benefit arrangements are recognized and measured in 

accordance with K-IFRS 1012 Income Taxes and K-IFRS 1019 Em-

ployee Benefits respectively;

• �liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment ar-

rangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements 

of the Company entered into to replace share-based payment ar-

rangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with K-IFRS 

1102 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and assets (or 

disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance 

with K-IFRS 1105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontin-

ued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of: a) the consid-

eration transferred, b) the amount of any non-controlling interests 

in the acquiree, and c) the fair value of the acquirer's previously 

held equity interest in the acquire over the net of the acquisition-

date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities 

assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date 

amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed 

exceeds the sum of: a) the consideration transferred, b) the amount 

of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and c) the fair value 

of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any); 

the excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain 

purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and 

entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net as-

sets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at 

fair value or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of 

the recognized amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. 

The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-trans-

action basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured 

at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another 

K-IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Company in a business 

combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contin-

gent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is 

measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of 

the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes 

in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as 

measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with 

corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period 

adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information 

obtained during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed 

one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances 

that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the con-

tingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period 

adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is clas-

sified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-

measured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settle-

ment is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that 

is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent 

reporting dates in accordance with K-IFRS 1039 Financial Instru-

ments: Recognition and Measurement, or K-IFRS 1037 Provisions, 

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with 

the corresponding gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Compa-

ny's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to 

fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Company 

obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized 

in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree 

prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognized 

in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss 

where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were 

disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete 

by the end of the reporting period in which the combination oc-

curs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for 

which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts 

are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or ad-

ditional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new informa-

tion obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the 

acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts 

recognized at that date. 

(4) Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Company entity are 

presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in 

which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose 

of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial 

position of each Company entity are expressed in Currency Units 

(CU), which is the functional currency of the Company and the 

presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, 

transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional cur-

rency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange 

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each re-

porting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies 

are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary 

items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign curren-

cies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair 

value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in 

terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
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Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period 

in which they arise except for:

• �exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to as-

sets under construction for future productive use, which are included 

in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment 

to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

• �exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge 

certain foreign currency risks (see Note 2 (19) below for hedging 

accounting policies); and

• �exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or pay-

able to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned 

nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in 

the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in other com-

prehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on 

disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, 

the assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign operations are 

expressed in Currency Units using exchange rates prevailing at 

the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items are 

translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless ex-

change rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which 

case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. 

Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized in other com-

prehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-

controlling interests as appropriate). On the disposal of a foreign 

operation (i.e. a disposal of the Company’s entire interest in a for-

eign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a sub-

sidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss of joint control over 

a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or loss 

of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign 

operation), all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect 

of that operation attributable to the Company are reclassified to 

profit or loss. Any exchange differences that have previously been 

attributed to non-controlling interests are derecognized, but they 

are not reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e. no loss of control) of a subsidiary 

that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of accu-

mulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling 

interests in equity and are not recognized in profit or loss. For all 

other partial disposals (i.e. of associates or jointly controlled entities 

not involving a change of accounting basis), the proportionate share 

of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or 

loss. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition 

of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the for-

eign operation and translated at the closing rate.

(5) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, savings and checking 

accounts, and short-term investment highly liquidated (maturities 

of three months or less from acquisition). Bank overdrafts are ac-

counted for as short-term borrowings.

(6) Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized and derecognized on trade date 

where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract 

whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the time 

frame established by the market concerned, and are initially mea-

sured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial 

assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are 

initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified catego-

ries: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), 

held-to-maturity (“HTM”) investments, available-for-sale (“AFS”) 

financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification de-

pends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is 

determined at the time of initial recognition.

1) �Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the 

amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest 

income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the 

rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (includ-

ing all fees and points paid or received that form an integral 

part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 

premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt 

instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 

carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is recognized on 

an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those 

financial assets classified as FVTPL.

2) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial as-

set is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL upon 

initial recognition. A financial asset is classified as held for trad-

ing if it has been acquired principally for the purpose of sell-

ing it in near term. Every financial instrument, containing one 

of more embedded derivatives, treated separately from the host 

contract, is classified as held for trading if it is a derivative that 

is not designated and effective as a hedge instrument or not a 

financial guarantee contract. Financial assets at FVTPL are stated 

at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement 

recognized in profit or loss. Transaction costs attributable to ac-

quisition upon initial recognition are immediately recognized in 

profit or loss in the period occurred. 
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Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset 

is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

• �it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the 

near term; or

• �on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial 

instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent 

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

• �it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging    

instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be 

designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

• �such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement 

or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

•� �the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or fi-

nancial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is 

evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's 

documented risk management or investment strategy, and infor-

mation about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

• �it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded de-

rivatives, and K-IFRS 1039 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or liabil-

ity) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or 

losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. The 

net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any divi-

dend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in 

the other gains and losses line item in the Statement of Income.

3) HTM investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable pay-

ments and fixed maturity dates that the Company has the positive 

intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as HTM invest-

ments. HTM investments are measured at amortized cost using 

the effective interest method less any impairment, with revenue 

recognized on an effective yield basis. 

4) AFS financial assets

Non-derivatives financial assets that are not classified as at held-

to-maturity; held-for-trading; designated as at fair value through 

profit or loss; or loans and receivables are classified as at financial 

assets AFS. Financial assets can be designated as sale on initial 

recognition. Financial assets AFS are initially recognized at fair 

value plus directly related transaction costs. They are subse-

quently measured at fair value. Unquoted equity investments 

whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are carried at cost. 

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recog-

nized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 

investments revaluation reserve, with the exception of impair-

ment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest meth-

od, and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, 

which are recognized in profit or loss. Where the investment is 

disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain 

or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation 

reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity 

instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the Company’s 

right to receive the dividends is established.

The fair value of AFS monetary assets denominated in a foreign 

currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at 

the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. The foreign ex-

change gains and losses that are recognized in profit or loss are 

determined based on the amortized cost of the monetary asset. 

Other foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in other 

comprehensive income.

5) Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or 

determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market 

are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are 

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest meth-

od, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by apply-

ing the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables 

when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

6) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for 

indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objec-

tive evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred 

after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated 

future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For listed and unlisted equity investments classified as AFS, a sig-

nificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below 

its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, including redeemable notes classified 

as AFS and finance lease receivables, objective evidence of impair-

ment could include:

•� significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

• default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

• �it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or fi-

nancial re-organization.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, 

assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in 

addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objec-

tive evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could 

include the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, 

an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio 

past the average credit period of 60 days, as well as observable 

changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate 

with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the im-

pairment loss recognized is the difference between the asset’s car-

rying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, 

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the im-

pairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of 

trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through 

the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is 

considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance 

account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written 

off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the 

carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in 

profit or loss. 

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumula-

tive gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive 

income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

With the exception of AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent 

period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the de-

crease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 

impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impair-

ment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the 

carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is 

reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have 

been had the impairment not been recognized.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously 

recognized in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. 

Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is rec-

ognized in other comprehensive income.

7) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the con-

tractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it 

transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and re-

wards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company 

neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 

of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the 

Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an as-

sociated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company 

retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a 

transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize 

the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing 

for the proceeds received.

(7) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, 

where cost is determined by using the moving-average method, ex-

cept for materials in-transit whose cost is determined by the specific 

identification method. The Company maintains perpetual inventory, 

which is adjusted to physical inventory counts performed at year 

end. When the market value of inventories (net realizable value for 

finished goods, merchandise and work-in-progress, and current re-

placement cost for raw materials) is less than the carrying value, 

carrying value is stated at the market value. When the circumstances 

that previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no 

longer exist and the new market value of inventories subsequently 

recovers, the valuation loss is reversed to the extent of the original 

valuation loss and the reversal is deducted from cost of sales. 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. 

Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed and variable over-

head costs, are assigned to inventories by the method most appro-

priate to the particular class of inventory. Net realizable value rep-

resents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated 

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

(8) Investments in associates (Equity-accounted investees)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated 

in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method 

of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for 

sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with K-IFRS 

1105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Opera-

tions. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is ini-

tially recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position 

at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company's share of 

the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. 

When the Company's share of losses of an associate exceeds the 

Company's interest in that associate (which includes any long-term 

interests that, in substance, form part of the Company's net invest-

ment in the associate), the Company discontinues recognizing its 

share of further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the 

extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obliga-

tions or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company's share of 

the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contin-

gent liabilities of an associate recognized at the date of acquisition 

is recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carrying 

amount of the investment. Any excess of the Company’s share of 

the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contin-

gent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is 

recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of K-IFRS 1039 Financial Instruments: Recog-

nition and Measurement are applied to determine whether it is 

necessary to recognize any impairment loss with respect to the 

Company’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire 

carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested 

for impairment in accordance with K-IFRS 1036 Impairment of As-

sets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher 

of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying 

amount, any impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying 

amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is 

recognized in accordance with K-IFRS 1036 to the extent that the 

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Company, transacts with its associate, profits and losses 

resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognized in 

the Company’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent 

of interests in the associate that are not related to the Company. 

(9) Investments in joint ventures 

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Com-

pany and other parties undertake an economic activity that is sub-

ject to joint control (i.e. when the strategic financial and operating 

policy decisions relating to the activities of the joint venture require 

the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control).

When the Company undertakes its activities under joint venture ar-

rangements directly, the Company’s share of jointly controlled assets 

and any liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers are recog-

nized in the financial statements of the relevant entity and classified 

according to their nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly 

in respect of interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for 

on an accrual basis. Income from the sale or use of the Company’s 

share of the output of jointly controlled assets, and its share of joint 

venture expenses, are recognized when it is probable that the eco-

nomic benefits associated with the transactions will flow to /from 

the Company and their amount can be measured reliably.

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a 

separate entity in which each venturer has an interest are referred 

to as jointly controlled entities.

The Company reports its interests in jointly controlled entities using 

proportionate consolidation, except when the investment is classi-

fied as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance 

with K-IFRS 1105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discon-

tinued Operations. The Company’s share of the assets, liabilities, 

income and expenses of jointly controlled entities is combined with 

the equivalent items in the consolidated financial statements on a 

line-by-line basis.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Company’s interest 

in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for in accordance with 

the Company’s accounting policy for goodwill arising in a business 

combination.

 

When the Company, [including any subsidiary/or its subsidiary], 

transacts with its jointly controlled entity, profits and losses result-

ing from the transactions with the jointly controlled entity are rec-

ognized in the Company's consolidated financial statements only 

to the extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not 

related to the Company.

(10) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is directly 

attributable to their purchase or construction, which includes any 

costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by management. It also includes the initial estimate of 

the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 

site on which it is located. 

Subsequent costs are recognized in carrying amount of an asset or 

as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associ-

ated with the assets will flow into the Company and the cost of an 

asset can be measured reliably. Routine maintenance and repairs 

are expensed as incurred.

The Company does not depreciate land and certain tangible assets. 

Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method 

based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

		E stimated useful lives

Buildings and structures	 3 - 60 years

Machinery and equipment	 2 - 20 years

Vehicles	  2 - 10 years

Others	 2 - 15 years
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If each part of an item of property, plant and equipment has a 

cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, it is 

depreciated separately.

The Company reviews the depreciation method, the estimated 

useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment 

at the end of each annual reporting period. If expectations dif-

fer from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a 

change in an accounting estimate. 

In addition, when an acquisition of a tangible asset occurs free-of-

charge or at a value less than fair market value, due to government 

subsidy, the acquisition cost less government subsidy is recorded 

as the acquisition cost upon initial acquisition and depreciation ex-

pense is calculated based on the carrying amount. 

(11) Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or 

for capital appreciation (including property under construction for 

such purposes), is measured initially at its cost, including transac-

tion costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is 

measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are recognized in carrying amount of an asset or 

as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associ-

ated with the assets will flow into the Company and the cost of an 

asset can be measured reliably. Routine maintenance and repairs 

are expensed as incurred.

Amongst the investment properties, land is not depreciated. How-

ever, investment properties other than land are depreciated over 

10-40 years of their useful lives using the straight-line method.

The depreciation method, residual value and useful lives of invest-

ment properties are reassessed or reviewed at the end of each 

annual reporting period, and any changes from them are treated 

as change in accounting estimates. 

(12) Intangible assets

1) Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired sepa-

rately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and ac-

cumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a 

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated 

useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of 

each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in esti-

mate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible as-

sets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are 

carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

2) Internally-generated intangible assets - research and de-

velopment expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in 

the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from develop-

ment (or from the development phase of an internal project) is 

recognized if, and only if, all of the following have been dem-

onstrated:

• �the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it 

will be available for use or sale;

• the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

• the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

• �how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic 

benefits;

• �the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources 

to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible as-

set; and

• �the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the 

intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intan-

gible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date 

when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria 

listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can 

be recognized, development expenditure is recognized in profit 

or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible 

assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and 

accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible 

assets that are acquired separately.

3) Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets that are acquired in a business combination are 

recognized separately from goodwill and are initially recognized 

at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as 

their cost)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in 

a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated 

amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on the same 

basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately. 

4) Derecognition of intangible assets 

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no fu-

ture economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, 

measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 

and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in profit or 

loss when the asset is derecognized.
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5) Useful lives

Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their esti-

mated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

	E stimated	 Amortization

	 useful lives	 method

Industrial property rights	      5 ~ 10 years	    Straight-line

Development costs	 5 years	 Straight-line

Others	 5 ~ 80 years	 Straight-line

Membership	 Indefinite useful life	 -

(13) Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognized as an asset 

at the date when control is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill 

is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration trans-

ferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, 

and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in 

the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of 

the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment at least 

annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allo-

cated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units (“CGU”) 

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. CGUs 

to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment an-

nually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit 

may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than 

its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce 

the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then 

to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis of the carrying 

amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized for 

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. 

On disposal of a subsidiary, the relevant amount of the related good-

will is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

(14) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying 

amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether 

there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment 

loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the as-

set is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment 

loss, if any. If the recoverable amount for an individual asset can-

not be estimated, recoverable amount is determined for the CGU. 

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identi-

fied, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, or oth-

erwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a 

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not 

yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and 

whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Re-

coverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell or value 

in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 

are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 

that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash 

flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be 

less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or 

CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 

immediately recognized as an expense. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 

amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to its recoverable amount, 

but the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 

amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss 

been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impair-

ment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

(15) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale 

if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale 

transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is 

regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-

current asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in 

its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, 

which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed 

sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Company is committed to a sale plan involving loss of 

control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsid-

iary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described above 

are met, regardless of whether the Company will retain a non-con-

trolling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale 

are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair 

value less costs to sell.

(16) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial li-

abilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the con-

tractual arrangement.

2) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual in-

terest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the 

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3) Compound instruments

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible 

bonds) issued by the Company are classified separately as finan-

cial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the 

contractual arrangement. At the date of issue, the fair value of 

the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market 

interest rate for a similar non-convertible instrument. This amount 

is recorded as a liability on an amortized cost basis using the effec-

tive interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the 

instrument’s maturity date. The equity component is determined 

by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair 

value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognized 

and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not sub-

sequently remeasured.

4) Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially measured at their 

fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently 

measured at the higher of:

• �the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in 

accordance with K-IFRS 1037 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets; and

• �the amount initially recognized less, cumulative amortization recog-

nized in accordance with the K-IFRS 1018 Revenue. 

5) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVT-

PL or other financial liabilities.

6) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial li-

ability is either held for trading or it is designated as FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

• �it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in 

the near term; or

• �on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial 

instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent 

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

• �it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging 

instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may 

be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

• �such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement 

or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

• �the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or fi-

nancial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is 

evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's 

documented risk management or investment strategy, and informa-

tion about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

• �it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded deriva-

tives, and K-IFRS 1039 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Mea-

surement permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to 

be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains 

or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. 

The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any 

interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other 

gains and losses’ line item in the [statement of comprehensive in-

come/income statement]. Fair value is determined in the manner 

described in Note [x].

7) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially mea-

sured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial li-

abilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest method, with interest expense recognized on 

an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amor-

tized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense 

over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 

exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the ex-

pected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter 

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

8) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only 

when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or 

they expire.

(17) Retirement benefit costs

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are 

recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service 

entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing 

benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, 

with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each re-

porting period. Actuarial gains and losses that exceed 10 percent 

of the greater of the present value of the Company’s defined ben-

efit obligation and the fair value of plan assets as at the end of 

the prior year are amortized over the expected average remaining 

working lives of the participating employees, under the corridor 

approach. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent 

that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortized 

on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits 

become vested.
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The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of 

financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation as adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses 

and unrecognized past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value 

of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to 

unrecognized actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the present 

value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to 

the plan.

(18) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction 

or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily 

take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 

or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the 

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific 

borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deduct-

ed from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Additionally, 

borrowing costs eligible for capitalization reflects hedge effective-

ness in case that the hedge accounting for interest rate risk can be 

applied for borrowing costs directly related to qualifying assets.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the pe-

riod in which they are incurred.

(19) Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instru-

ments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange 

rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate 

swaps and cross currency swaps. 

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the de-

rivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting 

gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the 

derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in 

such case the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on 

the nature of the hedge relationship. The Company designates cer-

tain derivatives as either as hedges of recognized assets or liabilities 

or firm commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly prob-

able forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency risk of firm 

commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in 

foreign operations (net investment hedges).

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognized as a financial 

asset; a derivative with a negative fair value is recognized as a fi-

nancial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or 

a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is 

more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realized or settled 

within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets 

or current liabilities.

1) Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host 

contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and 

characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts 

and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a 

non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the hybrid instru-

ment to which the embedded derivative relates is more than 12 

months and it is not expected to be realized or settled within 12 

months. Other embedded derivatives are presented as current as-

sets or current liabilities.

2) Hedge accounting

The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which 

include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non-derivatives in 

respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash 

flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign operations. 

Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are ac-

counted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents 

the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged 

item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy 

for undertaking various hedge transactions.

Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing 

basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument 

is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows 

of the hedged item.

3) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and 

qualify as fair value hedges are recognized in profit or loss immedi-

ately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged as-

set or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change 

in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in the 

hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in the 

line of the statement of comprehensive income relating to the 

hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company revokes 

the hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires 

or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies 

for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying 

amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amor-

tized to profit or loss from that date.
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4) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives 

that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognized 

in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the 

ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit or loss, and 

is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income 

and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the 

periods when the hedged item is recognized in profit or loss, in 

the same line of the income statement as the recognized hedged 

item. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged re-

sults in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial 

liability, the gains and losses previously accumulated in equity are 

transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement 

of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company revokes 

the hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires 

or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or it no longer qualifies for 

hedge accounting. Any gain or loss accumulated in equity at that 

time remains in equity and is recognized when the forecast trans-

action is ultimately recognized in profit or loss.

When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the 

gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognized immediately in 

profit or loss.

5) Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted 

for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedg-

ing instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is 

recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 

the foreign currency translation reserve. The gain or loss relating 

to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit or 

loss, and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the ef-

fective portion of the hedge accumulated in the foreign currency 

translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss in the same way 

as exchange differences relating to the foreign operation.

(20) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obliga-

tion (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable 

that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a 

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the 

consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of 

the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 

surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the 

cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying 

amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect 

of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a pro-

vision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable 

is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 

will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured 

reliably.

At the end of each reporting period, the remaining provision bal-

ance is reviewed and assessed to determine if the current best esti-

mate is being recognized. If the existence of an obligation to trans-

fer economic benefit is no longer probable, the related provision is 

reversed during the period. 

(21) Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements 

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others pro-

viding similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity 

instruments at the grant date. 

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled 

share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the 

vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instru-

ments that will eventually vest. At the end of each reporting period, 

the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instru-

ments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original 

estimates, if any, is recognized in profit or loss such that the cumu-

lative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding 

adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other 

than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or ser-

vices received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated 

reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the 

equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains 

the goods or the counterparty renders the service. 

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognized for 

the goods or services acquired, measured initially at the fair value of 

the liability. At the end of each reporting period until the liability is 

settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability 

is remeasured, with any changes in fair value recognized in profit 

or loss for the year.

(22) Treasury stock

When the Company repurchases its own equity instruments (trea-

sury stock), the incremental costs, net of tax effect, are deducted 

from the shareholders’ equity and recognized as other capital items 

deducted from the total equity in the statement of financial posi-

tion. In addition, profits or losses from purchase, sale, or retirement 

of treasury stocks are directly recognized in shareholders’ equity. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
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(23) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 

or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, 

rebates and other similar allowances.

1) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the Company 

has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of 

ownership of the goods, the Company retains neither continu-

ing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with 

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, the amount 

of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that the eco-

nomic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 

entity, and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 

transaction can be measured reliably.

2) Rendering of services

Revenue from rental and management of operating services is rec-

ognized as the passage of service periods and revenue from other 

services is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of 

the contract.

3) Interest revenue

Interest revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic 

benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can 

be measured reliably. Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by 

reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest 

rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 

future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 

to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

4) Dividend revenue

Dividend revenue from investments is recognized when the share-

holders’ right to receive payment has been established (provided 

that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

 

(24) Government subsidies

Government subsidies are not recognized until there is reasonable 

assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attach-

ing to them and that the grants will be received. 

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market interest rate 

is treated as a government subsidy, measured as the difference be-

tween proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on 

prevailing market interest rates. 

Government subsidies whose primary condition is that the Compa-

ny should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current as-

sets are recognized as deferred revenue in the statement of financial 

position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational 

basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Other government subsidies are recognized as revenue over the 

periods to correspond to the costs it intends to compensate, on a 

systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable as compen-

sation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of 

giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future 

related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which 

they become receivable.

(25) Current tax payable and deferred tax

Income tax consists of current tax and deferred tax.

1) Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. 

Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated 

[statement of comprehensive income /income statement] because 

of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 

other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The 

Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that 

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 

reporting period.

2) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated finan-

cial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the com-

putation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally rec-

ognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 

are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences 

to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be avail-

able against which those deductible temporary differences can be 

utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized 

if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial 

recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets 

and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit 

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differ-

ences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, 

and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able 

to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is prob-

able that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresee-

able future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary 

differences associated with such investments and interests are 

only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be 

sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of 

the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the 

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end 

of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no 

longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010
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(3) Changes in scope of consolidation

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates 

that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 

settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 

the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities 

and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 

the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the 

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its 

assets and liabilities.

3) Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except 

when they relate to items that are recognized in other compre-

hensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current 

and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive 

income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or 

deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business 

combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the 

business combination. 

3  TRANSITION TO K-IFRS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year 

ended December 31, 2011 have been prepared in accordance 

with K-IFRS.

Until the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company prepared 

its consolidated financial statements in accordance with Korean 

GAAP. Beginning the year ending December 31, 2011, the Com-

pany prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance 

with K-IFRS. 

The Company prepared its opening K-IFRS statement of financial 

position as of the date of transition, January 1, 2010, in accor-

dance with the provisions of K-IFRS 1101, First-time adoption of 

International Financial Reporting Standards.

(1) K-IFRS 1101 First-time of adoption of IFRS – Optional 	

exemptions

K-IFRS 1101 provides a number of optional exemptions from the 

general principle of full retrospective applications. The Company’s 

election of optional exemptions for first-time adoption of IFRSs of 

are as follows.

a) Business combination: The Company elected not to apply K-IFRS 

1103, Business combinations, retrospectively to past business com-

binations which have occurred prior to January 1, 2010.  

b) Borrowing cost: The Company has capitalized borrowing costs 

that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or pro-

duction of qualifying assets as part of the cost of that asset since 

January 1, 2010. 

c) Cumulative translation differences: The cumulative foreign cur-

rency translation adjustments from translation of foreign opera-

tions are assumed to be nil at January 1, 2010. 

d) For certain land and buildings, the Company elected to use the 

revalued amount in accordance with Korean GAAP as deemed cost 

at January 1, 2010, the date of transition. 

(2) Significant differences between Korean GAAP and K-IFRS 

applicable to the Company

1) Account reclassification of investment property 

Properties acquired for rental revenue purposes, which were re-

ported as tangible assets under K-IFRS, are reclassified as invest-

ment property under K-IFRS. In addition, properties held for sale, 

which were reported as tangible assets under Korean GAAP, are 

reclassified as non-current assets held for sale under K-IFRS.

2) Reclassification of memberships and other facility passes

Membership and other facility passes, which were reported as 

other non-current assets under Korean GAAP, are reclassified as 

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives under K-IFRS.

3) Actuarial assessment of defined benefit obligation

Under Korean GAAP, accrued severance indemnities was calcu-

lated and recognized as if all employees who have worked over a 

year were to retire at the end of reporting period. However, under 

K-IFRS, retirement benefit obligation is estimated by actuarial as-

sessment using the projected unit credit method.

4) Impairment and allowance of financial assets

Under Korean GAAP, the allowance for doubtful accounts is col-

lectively calculated based on the estimated uncollectible amount 

considering the historical loss experience. However, under K-IFRS, 

the allowance for doubtful accounts is individually calculated or 

collectively calculated by homogenous group, which has a similar 

credit risk, based on the historical loss experience.

5) Presentation of deferred tax and conversion adjustments 

due to tax effects

Under Korean GAAP, deferred tax assets and liabilities were clas-

sified as either current or non-current depending on the classifica-

tion of their underlying assets and liabilities or the time of expected 

reversal of the temporary differences if they did not relate to spe-

cific assets and liabilities. However, under K-IFRS, deferred assets 

and liabilities are all classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

Additionally, the tax effects resulting from the K-IFRS transition 

adjustments herein are reflected.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
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Under Korean GAAP, subsidiaries whose total assets, as of December 31 of the prior year, were less than ￦10 billion, were excluded 

from consolidation pursuant to the former ‘Act on External Audit of Stock Companies’ in the Republic of Korea. However, such rule is 

not applicable under K-IFRS. As a result, all entities the Company has interests in are subject to potential consolidation under K-IFRS. 

(4) The effects of the transition from Korean GAAP to K-IFRS for financial position, results of operations and cash flows

1) The Company’s financial position effects of K-IFRS adoption at January 1, 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

		 Notes	 K-GAAP	A djustment	 K-IFRS

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 	 (*1) 	 ￦       423,314,455	 ￦ 1,478,456	 ￦     424,792,911

Short-term financial assets  	 (*1)	 78,786,662	 1,000,000	 79,786,662

Trade and other accounts receivable	 (*1)(*2)	 370,649,681	 (639,932)	 370,009,749

Inventories	 (*1)	 263,090,343	 641,321	 263,731,664

Derivative assets		  7,416,402	 (388)	 7,416,014

Deferred tax asset	 (*3)	 10,608,121	 (10,608,121)	 -

Other current assets	 (*1)(*4)	 53,230,993	 (2,220,918)	 51,010,075

			  1,207,096,657		  1,196,747,075

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:	 			 

Long-term financial assets 	 (*1)/(*5)	 64,473,444	 (963,826)	 63,509,618

Investments in jointly 

  controlled entities and associates	 (*5)	 71,846,751	 (1,017,539)	 70,829,212

Trade and other accounts receivable	 (*1)(*2)(*4)	 8,505,612	 (1,382,964)	 7,122,648

Investment property 	 (*6)	 -	 92,639,879	 92,639,879

Property, plant and equipment	 (*6)(*7)	 3,127,337,019	 (94,665,518)	 3,032,671,501

Intangible assets	 (*1)(*8)	 109,154,936	 12,701,687	 121,856,623

Deferred tax assets	 (*3)(*9)	 710,670	 15,275,480	 15,986,150

Other non-current assets	 (*1)(*4)(*8)	 20,102,882	 (15,190,639)	 4,912,243

			  3,402,131,314		  3,409,527,874

TOTAL ASSETS		  ￦ 4,609,227,971		  ￦ 4,606,274,949

			C   ompany

	Included in consolidation under K-IFRS		  OCI Information & Communication Co., Ltd.

			   OCI Materials Taiwan Co., Ltd.

			   OCI Materials Japan Co., Ltd.

			   DCC (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
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December 31, 2011 and 2010

Notes 

(*1) Change in scope of consolidation

(*2) Change of method to estimate allowance for doubtful accounts

(*3) Reclassification of deferred tax

(*4) Reclassification of other accounts

(*5) Reclassification of investments in subsidiaries and AFS financial assets

(*6) Reclassification of properties used for rental to investment properties

(*7) Borrowing costs and adjustment of durable period

(*8) Reclassification of memberships and guarantee deposits to intangible assets

(*9) Deferred tax effects due from K-IFRS transition adjustments 

(*10) Change in method of long-term employee benefits

(*11) Change in method of retirement benefit obligation

(*12) Reclassification of deferred tax

(*13) Reclassification of reserve of property-revaluation to retained earnings

(*14) Reclassification of capital adjustments related to equity accounted investees to retained earnings

(*15) Reclassification of translation gain (loss) on overseas operation to retained earnings

(*16) Adjustment of subsidiaries’ net assets

(*17) Details of adjustment of retained earning caused by transition to K-IFRSs are as follows (Korean won in thousands).	
			 

		  K-IFRS

Change of method to estimate allowance for doubtful accounts		    ￦        389,813

Deferred tax effect of transition to K-IFRS		  13,178,375

Reclassification of reserve of property-revaluation to retained earnings		  415,932,404

Reclassification of capital adjustments related to equity accounted investees to retained earnings	 (59,246,874)

Retirement benefit obligation		  2,582,662

Recognition of employee benefits		  (1,882,585)

Reclassification of actuarial gain and loss		  (20,510,062)

Reclassification of translation gain (loss) on overseas operation to retained earnings	 25,093,349

Adjustment of borrowing costs		  (7,411,099)

Others		  (69,831)

		  ￦ 368,056,152

		 Notes	 K-GAAP	A djustment	 K-IFRS

LIABILITIES					   

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Current financial liabilities 		  ￦     910,892,304	   ￦                  -	 ￦    910,892,304

Trade and other accounts payable	 (*1)(*10)	 390,697,684	 642,274	 391,339,958

Derivative liabilities		  12,122	 -	 12,122

Income tax payable	 (*4)	 42,361,466	 (2,859,445)	 39,502,021

Other current liabilities	 (*1)(*4)	 7,269,652	 249,322	 7,518,974

			  1,351,233,228		  1,349,265,379

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:			 

Non-current financial liabilities		  699,498,286	 -	 699,498,286

Trade and other accounts payable	 (*1)(*4)	 14,033,849	 948,873	 14,982,722

Provisions 		  28,567,395	 152	 28,567,547

Retirement benefit obligation	 (*11)	 75,276,251	 (1,718,225)	 73,558,026

Deferred tax liabilities	 (*12)	 34,632,077	 (2,676,544)	 31,955,533

Other non-current liabilities	 (*4)	 733,746,804	 (1,779,046)	 731,967,758

			  1,585,754,662		  1,580,529,872

TOTAL LIABILITIES		  2,936,987,890		  2,929,795,251

	

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Common stock 		  120,421,620	 -	 120,421,620

Capital surplus 	 (*13)	 609,277,445	 (415,766,541)	 193,510,904

Capital adjustments 	 (*14)	 (216,263,735)	 117,085,950	 (99,177,785)

Accumulated other 

  comprehensive gain (loss) 	 (*14)(*15)	 55,453,006	 (61,972,069)	 (6,519,063)

Retained earnings	 (*17)	 858,240,531	 368,056,152	 1,226,296,683

			  1,427,128,867		  1,434,532,359

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS	 (*16)	 245,111,214	 (3,163,875)	 241,947,339

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY		  1,672,240,081		  1,676,479,698

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

  SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY		  ￦ 4,609,227,971		  ￦ 4,606,274,949
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2) The Company’s financial position effects on K-IFRS adoption at December 31, 2010 are as follows

(Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

Notes 
(*1) Change in scope of consolidation

(*2) Change of method to estimate allowance for doubtful accounts

(*3) Reclassification of deferred tax

(*4) Reclassification of other accounts

(*5) Reclassification of investments in subsidiaries and AFS financial assets

(*6) Reclassification of properties used for rental to investment properties

(*7) Borrowing costs and adjustment of useful life

(*8) Reclassification of memberships and guarantee deposits to intangible assets

(*9) Deferred tax effect due from K-IFRS transition adjustments 

(*10) Change in method of long-term employee benefits

(*11) Change in method of retirement benefit obligation

(*12) Reclassification of deferred tax

(*13) Reclassification of reserve of property-revaluation to retained earnings

(*14) Reclassification of capital adjustments related to equity accounted investees to retained earnings

(*15) Reclassification of translation gain (loss) on overseas operation to retained earnings

(*16) Adjustment of subsidiaries’ net assets

(*17) Details of adjustment of retained earning caused by transition to K-IFRSs are as follows (Korean won in thousands).	

		 Notes	 K-GAAP	A djustment	 K-IFRS

ASSETS				  

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 	 (*1)	 ￦    385,340,212	 ￦    35,913,338	 ￦   421,253,550

Short-term financial assets  	 (*1)	 196,854,075	 1,330,000	 198,184,075

Trade and other accounts receivable	 (*1)(*2)	 459,589,515	 (180,859)	 459,408,656

Inventories	 (*1)	 275,355,233	 19,882,778 	 295,238,011

Derivative assets		  1,774,921	 270 	 1,775,191

Deferred tax assets	 (*3)	 4,447,624	 (4,447,624)	 -

Other current assets	 (*1)(*4)	 37,642,868	 2,837,957 	 40,480,825

			  1,361,004,448		  1,416,340,308

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:		

Long-term financial assets 	 (*1)(*5)	 72,209,051	 (3,924,492)	 68,284,559

Investments in jointly

  controlled entities and associates	 (*5)	 80,862,453	 18,111	 80,880,564

Trade and other accounts receivable	 (*1)(*2)(*4)	 6,936,573	 (426,854)	 6,509,719

Investment property 	 (*6)	 -	 97,976,162	 97,976,162

Property, plant and equipment	 (*6)(*7)	 3,869,314,687	 (89,475,900)	 3,779,838,787

Intangible assets	 (*1)(*8)	 85,176,462	 35,569,588	 120,746,050

Deferred tax assets	 (*3)(*9)	 23,457,826	 (3,372,983)	 20,084,843

Other non-current assets	 (*1)(*4)(*8)	 30,124,754	 (24,569,778)	 5,554,976

			  4,168,081,806		  4,179,875,660

TOTAL ASSETS		    ￦ 5,529,086,254		  ￦ 5,596,215,968

	

LIABILITIES			 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Current financial liabilities 		  ￦     731,301,843	 ￦   28,546,209 	 ￦ 759,848,052

Trade and other accounts payable	 (*1)(*10)	 701,614,823	 24,696,131	 726,310,954

Derivative liabilities		  304,004	 - 	 304,004

Income tax payable	 (*4)	 101,624,689	 (3,894,502)	 97,730,187

Other current liabilities	 (*1)(*4)	 6,530,292	 1,577,032  	 8,107,324

Deferred tax liabilities	 (*12)	 279,109	 (279,109)	 - 

			  1,541,654,760		  1,592,300,521

		 Notes	 K-GAAP	A djustment	 K-IFRS

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:				  

Non-current financial liabilities		  ￦    825,508,441	 ￦          5,274 	 ￦          825,513,715

Trade and other accounts payable	 (*1)(*4)	 13,370,000	 1,450,036 	 14,820,036

Provisions 		  5,464,804	 (459)	 5,464,345

Retirement benefit obligation	 (*11)	 77,917,416	 (6,482,944)	 71,434,472

Deferred tax liabilities	 (*12)	 39,913,889	 1,719	 39,915,608

Other non-current liabilities	 (*4)	 759,163,546	 (128,584) 	 759,034,962

			  1,721,338,096		  1,716,183,138

TOTAL LIABILITIES		    3,262,992,856		  3,308,483,659

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY			 

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:	 			 

Common stock 		  121,606,450	 - 	 121,606,450

Capital surplus 	 (*13)	 618,594,229	 (415,813,585)	 202,780,644

Capital adjustments 	 (*14)	 (207,678,985)	 117,088,067	 (90,590,918)

Accumulated other

  comprehensive gain (loss) 	 (*14)(*15)	 46,273,763	 (61,379,802)	 (15,106,039)

Retained earnings	 (*17)	 1,397,634,733	 385,994,661	 1,783,629,394

			  1,976,430,190		  2,002,319,531

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS	 (*16)	 289,663,208	 (4,250,430)	 285,412,778

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY		  2,266,093,398		  2,287,732,309

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

  SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY		  ￦ 5,529,086,254		  ￦ 5,596,215,968
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

Notes 
(*1) Change in scope of consolidation

(*2) Adjustment of useful life

(*3) Effect of actuarial valuation of employee benefits 

(*4) Change in method of long-term employee benefits 

(*5) Reclassification of operating income and expenses

(*6) Adjustment of borrowing costs

(*7) Adjustment of associates’ net income

(*8) Deferred tax effect due from K-IFRS transition adjustments

(*9) Reclassification of accumulated other comprehensive income related to equity accounted investees to retained earnings

(*10) Reclassification of translation gain (loss) on overseas operation to retained earnings 

(*11) Reclassification of actuarial gain and loss

4) Adjustments in the statement of cash flows due to transition to K-IFRS

Under Korean GAAP, dividends received, interest received and paid, and income tax paid were presented as non-cash items and now 

under K-IFRS, they are presented as separate items in operating cash flows.

In addition, effects of foreign currency translation of cash and cash equivalents, which were classified as operating cash flows under 

Korean GAAP, are now under K-IFRS, stated separately in either from operating, investing and financing cash flows. 

(5) Reclassification of operating income

In accordance with K-IFRS, certain accounts which were classified into the non-operating income and expense under Korean GAAP 

were reclassified into other operating income and expense, under K-IFRS, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respec-

tively, is as follows (Korean won in thousands):

3) ��The Company’s comprehensive income effects on K-IFRS adoption for the year ended December 31, 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

		  K-IFRS

Change of method to estimate allowance for doubtful accounts		     ￦        389,813

Deferred tax effect of transition to K-IFRS		  13,178,375

Reclassification of reserve of property-revaluation to retained earnings		  415,932,404

Reclassification of capital adjustments related to equity accounted investees to retained earnings	 (73,096,719)

Retirement benefit obligation		  8,163,245

Recognition of employee benefits		  (2,175,660)

Reclassification of actuarial gain and loss		  (20,510,062)

Reclassification of translation gain (loss) on overseas operation to retained earnings	 25,093,349

Adjustment of borrowing costs		  (7,411,099)

Change in scope of consolidation		  4,725,542

Cancellation of goodwill amortization		  19,724,139

Adjustment of durable period		  4,815,129

Tax effect of transition to K-IFRS		  (2,116,692)

Others		  (717,103)

		     ￦ 385,994,661

		 Notes	 K-GAAP	A djustment	 K-IFRS

Sales	 (*1)	 ￦ 3,311,384,139	 ￦ 10,675,418	 ￦ 3,322,059,557

Cost of sales	 (*1)(*2)(*3)	 2,106,925,005	 (3,382,421)	 2,103,542,584

Gross profit		  1,204,459,134		  1,218,516,973

	

Selling and administrative expenses	 (*2)(*3)(*4)	 364,440,503	 (39,159,356)	 325,281,147

Other operating income	 (*5)	 14,068,069	 (10,537,404)	 3,530,665

Other operating expense	 (*5)	 37,184,276	 (745,274)	 36,439,002

	

Operating income		  816,902,424		  860,327,489

Financial income	 (*3)	 89,587,203	 (4,458,071)	 85,129,132

Financial cost	 (*6)	 137,395,903	 1,284,219	 138,680,122

Share of profits	 (*7)	 13,417,247	 18,266	 13,435,513

Other non-operating income	 (*5)	 6,267,296	 (513,573)	 5,753,723

Other non-operating expenses	 (*5)	 6,838,741	 1,496,187	 8,334,928

Income before income tax		  781,939,526		  817,630,807

Income tax expense	 (*8)	 132,000,253	 16,698,859	 148,699,112

Net income		  649,939,273		  668,931,695

		 Notes	 K-GAAP	A djustment	 K-IFRS

Other comprehensive income (loss)	

Gain (loss) on valuation of AFS financial assets		  ￦   (3,570,884)	 (10,426)	 ￦    (3,581,310)

Gain on valuation of equity-method investees	 (*9)	 (397,894)	 (219,102)	 (616,996)

Loss on valuation of equity-method investees	 (*10)	 (5,843,879)	 (618,453)	 (6,462,332)

Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans	 (*3)	 -	 (6,685,166)	 (6,685,166)

Gain on valuation of derivative instruments		  348,757	 -	 348,757

Others	 (*11)	 (2,473,906)	 2,467,636	 (6,270)

			  (11,937,806)		  (17,003,317)

Comprehensive income		  ￦ 638,001,467		  ￦ 651,928,378
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	 2011	 2010

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Commission income	 ￦    619,523	  ￦   1,089,182

Rental income	 47,100	 19,090

Reversal of Accumulated impairment	 100,480	 211,663

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment	 541,960	 1,410,964

Others	 7,192,680	 799,766

Total	 ￦ 8,501,743	 ￦ 3,530,665



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

4  �SIGNIFICANT CONSIDERATION AND KEY SOURCES OF UNCERTAINTY ESTIMATION

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 

about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may be different 

from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are continuously reviewed. The changes in accounting estimates are 

recognized in the period in which the estimate is changed if the change affects only that period, or in the period of change and future 

periods if the change affects both current and future periods. 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the report-

ing period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 

financial year. 

(1) Fair value of financial instruments

Derivatives financial instruments and AFS financial assets are measured at fair value after initial recognition and gains and losses from 

changes in fair value are recognized either in profit or loss or in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). If there is a market 

value disclosed in an active market when measuring fair value, that market value is used as fair value. Otherwise, the fair value is esti-

mated by a valuation technique requiring management’s assumption on the expected future cash flows and discount rate.

  

(2) Bad debt allowance for trade, loans and receivables

The Company estimates an allowance for doubtful loans and receivables based on aging of receivables, historical loss experience and 

economic and industrial factors. 

(3) Measurement of tangible and intangible assets

When tangible or intangible assets are acquired as part of business combination, management uses judgment in addition to other factors, 

to estimate the fair value at the acquisition date. In addition, an estimate of the associated assets’ useful lives for depreciation is made.  

(4) Estimation of restoration liabilities

The Company recognizes restoration liabilities for the amount that it estimates that will be incurred for removing, dismantling and 

restoring the site in order to restore the leased site at the end of lease contract. Estimation of future cash flows for restoration is based 

on factors such as inflation rates and market risk premium, and the present value is estimated by discounting estimated future cash 

flows with a risk-free interest rate.  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(5) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there 

is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impair-

ment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Other non-financial assets are tested for 

impairment whenever there is an indication that the carrying amount will not be recoverable. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 

time value of money and risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

(6) Defined benefit pension plan

For the defined benefit pension plan, the service cost is determined using actuarial valuations. In order to apply actuarial valuations, it 

is necessary to assume a discount rate, an expected rate of return on plan assets, and wage increase rate, etc. The retirement benefit 

plan contains significant uncertainties on the estimation due to its long-term nature. 

(7) Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized and measured based on management’s judgment. In particular, whether or not to recognize 

deferred tax assets and the scope of recognition are determined by assumptions on future circumstances and possibility of realization.

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s reportable segment is a strategic business unit which provides different types of goods and services. Each segment 

operates separately as it requires different technology and marketing strategies. The Company’s segment information is prepared for 

the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

The Company has three reportable segments as follows:

(1) Operating results by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

Segment	 Type of goods and services

New & Renewable Energy	 Manufacture and sale of solar products such as polysilicon

Petro and Coal Chemicals	 Manufacture and sale of pitch, carbon black, benzene, toluene di-isocyanate (TDI), etc.

Inorganic Chemicals and Others	 Sale of hydrogen peroxide, soda ash, NF3, etc. 

			  	 2011

		N ew & Renewable 	 Petro and Coal 	I norganic Chemicals	A djustment for 
		E nergy	C hemicals	 and Others	 consolidation	 Total

Gross sales	 ￦ 2,178,493,476	 ￦ 1,298,323,401	 ￦ 1,201,692,268	 ￦ (402,637,878)	 ￦ 4,275,871,267

Operating income	 776,359,779	 108,120,282	 231,238,401	 (1,668,634)	 1,114,049,828

Depreciation	 297,472,828	 41,406,979	 110,006,154	 1,908,506	 450,794,467

Amortization	 112,767	 326,244	 4,879,927	 -	 5,318,938

	 2011	 2010

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES	

Other bad debt expense	 ￦    2,225,642	 ￦      514,656

Loss on valuation of inventories	 377,807	 288,032

Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment	 1,467,060	 7,818,958

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment	 6,592,415	 25,435,204

Loss on disposal of intangible assets	 707,372	 920

Others	 997,568	 2,381,232

Total	 ￦ 12,367,864	 ￦  36,439,002
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(2) Assets by business segments as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

	

		 New & Renewable 	 Petro and Coal 	I norganic Chemicals	A djustment for 
		E nergy	C hemicals	 and Others	 consolidation	 Total

Gross Sales	 ￦ 1,322,270,669	 ￦ 1,166,821,671	 ￦ 1,068,557,535	 ￦ (235,590,318)	 ￦ 3,322,059,557

Operating income	 491,468,055	 186,679,303	 180,875,861	 1,304,270	 860,327,489

Depreciation	 174,412,250	 33,012,402	 96,657,118	 (604,239)	 303,477,531

Amortization	 94,274	 213,267	 3,551,542	 -	 3,859,083

		 New & Renewable 	 Petro and Coal 	I norganic Chemicals	A djustment for 
		E nergy	C hemicals	 and Others	 consolidation	 Total

Total assets	 ￦ 3,326,717,900	 ￦ 733,594,912	 ￦ 4,301,672,403	 ￦ (1,156,972,069)	 ￦   7,205,013,146

Property, plant

  and equipment	 2,920,567,764	 511,959,938	 2,132,468,044	 (757,757,052)	 4,807,238,694

Intangible assets	 564,964	 8,059,001	 100,789,988	 35,829,762	 145,243,715

	

		N ew & Renewable 	 Petro and Coal 	I norganic Chemicals	A djustment for 
		E nergy	C hemicals	 and Others	 consolidation	 Total

Total assets	 ￦ 2,512,338,725	 ￦ 545,243,993	 ￦ 3,599,510,027	 ￦ (1,060,876,777)	 ￦ 5,596,215,968

Property, plant

  and equipment	 2,232,679,905	 378,230,481	 1,924,776,949	 (755,848,548)	 3,779,838,787

Intangible assets	 563,954	 6,892,682	 77,459,652	 35,829,762	 120,746,050

		N ew & Renewable 	 Petro and Coal 	I norganic Chemicals	A djustment for 
		E nergy	C hemicals	 and Others	 consolidation	 Total

Total assets	 ￦ 2,162,868,747	 ￦ 468,659,251	 ￦  3,004,559,877	 ￦ (1,029,812,926)	 ￦ 4,606,274,949

Property, plant 

  and equipment	 1,912,787,908	 327,958,467	 1,548,377,913	 (756,452,787)	 3,032,671,501

Intangible assets	 6,556,019	 6,695,228	 72,775,614	 35,829,762	 121,856,623

(3) Operating results by geographical area for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets by geographical area as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
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					    			A   djustment	
		 Domestic	 United States	C hina	A sia	E urope	 Other	for consolidation	 Total

Gross Sales	 ￦ 1,290,829,472	 ￦ 346,798,609	 ￦1,098,733,484	 ￦748,485,587	 ￦ 18,178,351	 ￦1,175,483,642	 ￦ (402,637,878)	 ￦ 4,275,871,267

Operating income	 319,834,973	 75,775,347	 226,703,383	 195,527,622	 4,748,749	 293,128,388	 (1,668,634)	 1,114,049,828

						   

								A       djustment	
		 Domestic	 United States	C hina	A sia	E urope	 Other	for consolidation	 Total

Gross Sales	 ￦ 1,003,811,239	 ￦ 594,280,090	 ￦  660,736,954	 ￦ 664,723,210	 ￦142,750,569	 ￦   491,347,813	 ￦ (235,590,318)	 ￦ 3,322,059,557

Operating income	 265,401,255	 107,951,558	 141,676,356	 178,613,332	 38,357,552	 127,023,166	 1,304,270	 860,327,489

		 	

	

					     	A djustment	
		 Domestic	 United States	C hina	 Others	 for consolidation	 Total

Property, plant and equipment	 ￦  5,239,879,419	 ￦ 283,899,025	 ￦ 36,612,742	 ￦ 4,604,560	 ￦  (757,757,052)	 ￦    4,807,238,694

Intangible assets	 26,367,623	 71,474,912	 11,552,740	 18,678	 35,829,762	 145,243,715

					     	A djustment	
		 Domestic	 United States	C hina	 Others	 for consolidation	 Total

Property, plant and equipment	 ￦ 4,243,006,899	 ￦ 253,678,371	 ￦  37,422,203	 ￦ 1,579,862	 ￦ (755,848,548)	 ￦ 3,779,838,787

Intangible assets	 25,181,557	 51,841,912	 7,872,917	 19,902	 35,829,762	 120,746,050

		

					     	A djustment	
		 Domestic	 United States	C hina	 Others	 for consolidation	 Total

Property, plant and equipment	 ￦ 3,483,663,699	 ￦ 279,960,209	 ￦  23,505,748	 ￦ 1,994,632	 ￦ (756,452,787)	 ￦     3,032,671,501

Intangible assets	 24,109,509	 54,046,596	 7,849,254	 21,502	 35,829,762	 121,856,623
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

6  �CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Details of cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010  are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

7  FINANCIAL ASSETS

(1) Details of current and non-current financial assets as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 

are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

(2) AFS financial assets, which are marketable as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as 

follows (Korean Won in thousands):

(*1) ���As Evergreen Solar filed for bankruptcy, the Company recognized ￦480,864,082 thousands impairment loss and classified it 	

as an AFS financial asset (non-marketable).

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

Cash on hand	 ￦           80,101	 ￦           120,813	 ￦         858,099

Cash equivalents	 390,111,167	 421,132,737	 423,934,812

		 ￦    390,191,268	 ￦       421,253,550	 ￦   424,792,911

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

CURRENT	

Short-term financial instruments	 ￦  458,239,963	 ￦         197,920,000	 ￦       79,745,112

HTM investments (public bonds)	 526,770	 64,075	 41,550

HTM investments (corporate bonds)	 -	 200,000	 -

Subtotal	 458,766,733	 198,184,075	 79,786,662

NON-CURRENT			 

Long-term financial instruments	 35,045	 19,000	 1,527,360

AFS financial assets (non-marketable)	 1,875,414	 9,859,681	 2,410,475

AFS financial assets (marketable)	 54,210,151	 51,758,098	 56,346,581

AFS financial assets (equity investment)	 1,240	 1,240	 223,987

HTM investment (public bonds)	 3,912,215	 4,362,540	 3,001,215

HTM investment (corporate bonds)	 -	 2,284,000	 -

Subtotal	 60,034,065	 68,284,559	 63,509,618

Total	 ￦ 518,800,798	 ￦   266,468,634	 ￦          143,296,280
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		N umber of	  Percentage of 	A cquisition	M arket	G ain (loss) on 	C arrying
	Investees	 shares	 ownership(%)	 cost	 value	 valuation	 value

Asia Cement 
  Manufacturing Co., Ltd.	  231,517	  4.89	 ￦     3,241,557	 ￦   8,473,522	 ￦   5,231,965	 ￦    8,473,522

eTEC E&C Ltd.	 144,008	 5.14	 2,228,167	 7,603,622	 5,375,455	 7,603,622

Samkwang Glass Co., Ltd.	 342,222	 7.05	 9,058,330	 23,271,096	 14,212,766	 23,271,096

Tokai Carbon Co., Ltd.	 2,249,431	 1.00	 13,245,326	 13,795,780	 550,454	 13,795,780

Others			   551,223	 1,066,131	 514,908	 1,066,131

Total			   ￦ 28,324,603	 ￦54,210,151	 ￦ 25,885,548	 ￦  54,210,151

	

		N umber of	  Percentage of 	A cquisition	M arket	G ain (loss) on 	C arrying
	Investees	 shares	 ownership(%)	 cost	 value	 valuation	 value

Asia Cement
  Manufacturing Co., Ltd.	 231,517	 4.89	 ￦     3,241,557	 ￦ 10,580,327	 ￦    7,338,770	 ￦   10,580,327

Evergreen Solar (*1)	 15,698,125	 7.54	 49,379,972	 10,429,389	 (38,950,583)	 10,429,389

eTEC E&C Ltd.	 144,008	 5.14	 2,228,167	 5,760,320	 3,532,153	 5,760,320

Samkwang Glass Co., Ltd.	 342,222	 7.05	 9,058,330	 24,297,762	 15,239,432	 24,297,762

Others			   362,569	 690,300	 327,731	 690,300

Total			   ￦ 64,270,595	 ￦51,758,098	 ￦(12,512,497)	 ￦  51,758,098

December 31, 2011

December 31, 2010

	

		N umber of	  Percentage of 	A cquisition	M arket	G ain (loss) on 	C arrying
	Investees	 shares	 ownership(%)	 cost	 value	 valuation	 value

Asia Cement 
  Manufacturing Co., Ltd.	 231,517	 4.89	 ￦   3,241,557	 ￦12,826,042	 ￦   9,584,485	 ￦  12,826,042

Evergreen Solar 	 15,698,125	 7.54	 49,379,972	 22,154,239	 (27,225,732)	 22,154,239

eTEC E&C Ltd.	 144,008	 5.14	 2,228,167	 5,508,306	 3,280,139	 5,508,306

Samkwang Glass Co., Ltd.	 342,222	 7.05	 9,058,330	 15,074,879	 6,016,549	 15,074,879

Others			   362,584	 783,115	 420,531	 783,115

Total			   ￦64,270,609	 ￦56,346,581	 ￦ (7,924,028)	 ￦   56,346,581

	 January 1, 2010
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8  TRADE RECEIVABLE, LOAN AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

(1) Trade receivable, loan and other receivable as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as 

follows (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(2) Changes in allowance for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

CURRENT			 

Trade receivable	 ￦  534,717,475	 ￦  406,518,112	 ￦ 343,019,254

  Allowance for bad debt	 (3,022,877)	 (2,844,783)	 (3,741,586)

Short-term loans	 322,413	 247,998	 1,546,251

  Allowance for bad debt	 (4)	 (15)	 (15)

  Other accounts receivable	 75,256,179	 49,389,290	 27,654,204

  Allowance for bad debt	 (1,118,662)	 (1,050,610)	 (562,762)

  Discounts on present value	 (26,016)	 (34,351)	 (44,320)

Accrued income	 8,076,088	 4,328,699	 2,138,723

Others	 362,173	 2,854,316	 -

Subtotal	 614,566,769	 459,408,656	 370,009,749

NON-CURRENT		

Long-term loans	 765,780	 885,111	 1,048,381

  Allowance for bad debt	 -	 (4)	 (19)

Other accounts receivable	 2,914,497	 2,914,497	 3,214,497

  Allowance for bad debt	 (2,182,982)	 (198,553)	 (310,174)

  Discounts on present value	 (39,101)	 (73,803)	 (115,309)

Deposits	 5,486,341	 2,982,471	 3,285,272

Subtotal	 6,944,535	 6,509,719	 7,122,648

Total	 ￦ 621,511,304	 ￦ 465,918,375	 ￦ 377,132,397
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(3) Aging of trade receivable, loan and other receivable

Details of aging of trade receivable, loan and other receivable as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are 

as follows (Korean won in thousands):

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

	Below 90 days	 ￦  547,774,368	 ￦   414,217,286	 ￦ 333,374,405

Above 90 days but below 180 days	 45,708,071	 33,659,914	 27,817,842

	Above 180 days	 13,016,074	 6,742,599	 7,921,557

		 ￦ 606,498,513	 ￦ 454,619,799	 ￦ 369,113,804

					L    ong-term	N on-current  	
		 Trade receivable	 Other receivable	 Short-term loan	  loan	 other receivable

Beginning balances	 ￦     (2,844,783)	 ￦  (1,050,610)	 ￦          (15)	 ￦         (4)	 ￦    (198,553)

  Impairment loss	 (252,082)	 (147,888)	 -	 -	 (2,077,754)

  Write-off	 30,944	 -	 -	 -	 -

  Recovery of impairment loss	 43,044	 79,836	 11	 4	 93,325

Ending balance	 ￦   (3,022,877)	 ￦  (1,118,662)	 ￦             (4)	 ￦             -	 ￦ (2,182,982)

	

					L    ong-term	N on-current  	
		 Trade receivable	 Other receivable	 Short-term loan	  loan	 other receivable

Beginning balance	 ￦   (3,741,586)	 ￦     (562,763)	 ￦          (15)	 ￦        (19)	 ￦     (310,174)

  Impairment loss	 (116,060)	 (514,656)	 -	 -	 -

  Write-off	 800,429	 26,808	 -	 -	 111,621

  Recovery of impairment loss	 211,663	 -	 -	 15	 -

  Effect of foreign 

    currency translation	 771 	 -	 -	 -	 -

Ending balance	 ￦  (2,844,783)	 ￦ (1,050,610)	 ￦              (15)	 ￦          (4)	 ￦   (198,553)

	 2011

	 2010



9  INVENTORIES

(1) Inventories as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(2) Details of losses on valuation and other losses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows

(Korean won in thousands): 

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

		 	 December 31, 2011

		G ross amount	V aluation loss	C arrying value

	Merchandise	 ￦    23,215,404	 ￦               -	 ￦    23,215,404

Finished goods	 190,835,272	 (684,767)	 190,150,505

Semi-finished goods	 5,979,611	 (151,982)	 5,827,629

Work-in-process	 2,035,826	 -	 2,035,826

Raw materials	 152,515,786	 (10,665)	 152,505,121

Supplies 	 45,994,955	 -	 45,994,955

Others	 21,144,909	 -	 21,144,909

		 ￦   441,721,763	 ￦   (847,414)	 ￦  440,874,349

	

		 	 December 31, 2010

		G ross amount	V aluation loss	C arrying value

Merchandise	 ￦  36,064,066	 ￦               -	 ￦     36,064,066

Finished goods	 130,008,032	 (394,175)	 129,613,857

Semi-finished goods	 1,450,059	 -	 1,450,059

Work-in-process 	 1,365,854	 -	 1,365,854

Raw materials	 84,960,660	 -	 84,960,660

Supplies 	 26,207,237	 -	 26,207,237

Others	 15,576,278	 -	 15,576,278

		 ￦ 295,632,186	 ￦    (394,175)	 ￦    295,238,011

		 	 January 1, 2010

		G ross amount	V aluation loss	C arrying value

Merchandise	 ￦   19,566,808	 ￦               -	 ￦    19,566,808

Finished goods	 144,395,489	 (2,015,707)	 142,379,782

Semi-finished goods	 1,904,432	 (168,129)	 1,736,303

Work-in-process 	 586,542	 -	 586,542

Raw materials	 69,726,179	 -	 69,726,179

Supplies 	 19,275,364	 -	 19,275,364

Others	 10,460,686	 -	 10,460,686

		 ￦ 265,915,500	 ￦ (2,183,836)	 ￦    263,731,664
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	 2011	 2010

Cost of sales	 ￦ 1,402,471	 ￦         381,556

Other operating expenses	 377,807	 288,032

	 ￦ 1,780,278	 ￦        669,588

10  INVERSTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

(1) Details of the Company’s investment in jointly controlled entities and associates as of  December 31, 2011, 

December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010, date of transition are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

(*1) OCI-Ferro Co., Ltd., OCI-SNF Co., Ltd. and Eko Peroxide LLC and Liaoning East Shine Chemical Technology Co., Ltd. are jointly controlled entities.

(*2) �During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Parent and OCI Materials Co., Ltd., subsidiary, jointly acquired 25.00% interest each in Chemical 

Technology Co., LTd.

				   December 31, 2011

			  Percentage of 			 
Investees	N umber of shares	      ownership (%)	A cquisition cost	N et asset value	C arrying value

ORDEG Co., Ltd.	 294,574	 20.00	 ￦    1,686,878	 ￦  22,278,144	 ￦   22,278,144

OCI-Ferro Co., Ltd. (*1)	 167,166	 50.00	 3,437,203	 7,914,689	 7,914,689

OCI-SNF Co., Ltd. (*1)	 520,000	 50.00	 2,535,135	 32,549,394	 32,549,394

Eko Peroxide LLC (*1)	 -	 50.00	 26,155,741	 15,970,417	 22,026,116

Liaoning East Shine Chemical 

  Technology Co., Ltd. (*1)(*2)	 -	 50.00	 4,409,042	 4,562,767	 4,583,327

Total			   ￦  38,223,999	 ￦  83,275,411	 ￦   89,351,670

				  December 31, 2010

			  Percentage of 			 
Investees	N umber of shares	      ownership (%)	A cquisition cost	N et asset value	C arrying value

ORDEG Co., Ltd.	 294,574	 20.00	 ￦    1,686,878	 ￦   21,111,356	 ￦    21,111,356

OCI-Ferro Co., Ltd. (*1)	 167,166	 50.00	 3,437,203	 5,893,305	 5,893,305

OCI-SNF Co., Ltd. (*1)	 520,000	 50.00	 2,535,135	 29,741,931	 29,741,931

Eko Peroxide LLC (*1)	 -	 50.00	 26,155,741	 16,931,975	 24,133,972

Total			   ￦       33,814,957	 ￦ 73,678,567	 ￦  80,880,564

			  	 January 1, 2010

			  Percentage of 			 
Investees	N umber of shares	      ownership (%)	A cquisition cost	N et asset value	C arrying value

ORDEG Co., Ltd.	 294,574	 20.00	 ￦    1,686,878	 ￦  16,394,819	 ￦    16,394,819

OCI-Ferro Co., Ltd. (*1)	 167,166	 50.00	 3,437,203	 5,325,780	 5,325,780

OCI-SNF Co., Ltd. (*1)	 520,000	 50.00	 2,535,135	 23,457,772	 23,457,772

Eko Peroxide LLC (*1)	 -	 50.00	 26,155,741	 17,001,424	 25,650,841

Total			   ￦       33,814,957	 ￦  62,179,795	 ￦   70,829,212



(2) Financial data of the investees as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

11  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

(1) Carrying Value of property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and 

January 1, 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands): 

		 		 December 31, 2011

			B  uildings 	M achinery and	
		 Land	 and structures	 equipment	 Others	 Total

Acquisition costs	 ￦ 500,463,415	 ￦ 1,036,142,727	 ￦ 4,710,020,627	 ￦   789,777,359	 ￦  7,036,404,128

Accumulated depreciation	 -	 (261,017,883)	 (1,879,813,060)	 (74,694,246)	 (2,215,525,189)

Accumulated impairment	 -	 -	 (368,478)	 -	 (368,478)

Government subsidies	 -	 (2,895,617)	 (10,319,963)	 (56,187)	 (13,271,767)

Net balances	 ￦ 500,463,415	 ￦  772,229,227	 ￦ 2,819,519,126	 ￦  715,026,926	 ￦ 4,807,238,694

			  	December 31, 2010

			B  uildings 	M achinery and	
		 Land	 and structures	 equipment	 Others	 Total

Acquisition costs	 ￦  497,844,914	 ￦  776,240,224	 ￦ 3,204,105,127	 ￦ 1,172,665,265	 ￦ 5,650,855,530

Accumulated depreciation	 -	 (233,473,291)	 (1,557,831,671)	 (57,022,694)	 (1,848,327,656)

Accumulated impairment	 -	 (7,311,945)	 (506,296)	 (717)	 (7,818,958)

Government subsidies	 -	 -	 (12,319,429)	 (2,550,700)	 (14,870,129)

Net balances	 ￦ 497,844,914	 ￦  535,454,988	 ￦ 1,633,447,731	 ￦ 1,113,091,154	 ￦ 3,779,838,787

				   January 1, 2010

			B  uildings 	M achinery and	
		 Land	 and structures	 equipment	 Others	 Total

Acquisition costs	 ￦  482,378,753	 ￦   707,207,697	 ￦ 2,959,459,127	 ￦   476,757,879	 ￦ 4,625,803,456

Accumulated depreciation	 -	 (213,190,885)	 (1,310,854,711)	 (54,731,928)	 (1,578,777,524)

Accumulated impairment	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

Government subsidies	 -	 -	 (14,346,956)	 (7,475)	 (14,354,431)

Net balances	 ￦ 482,378,753	 ￦  494,016,812	 ￦1,634,257,460	 ￦  422,018,476	 ￦  3,032,671,501
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	 2011	

Investees	A ssets	L iabilities	E quity	 Sales	N et income (loss)

ORDEG Co., Ltd.	 ￦   227,514,899	 ￦  116,124,173	 ￦  111,390,726	 ￦ 380,180,894	 ￦  10,481,023

OCI-Ferro Co., Ltd. 	 31,160,598	 15,331,219	 15,829,379	 45,567,890	 4,711,433

OCI-SNF Co., Ltd. 	 86,455,168	 21,356,392	 65,098,776	 163,207,381	 16,207,609

Eko Peroxide LLC	 34,965,844	 3,025,011	 31,940,833	 31,085,053	 (461,542)

Liaoning East Shine 
  Chemical Technology Co., Ltd.	 9,138,693	 13,160	 9,125,533	 -	 -

Total	 ￦ 389,235,202	 ￦ 155,849,955	 ￦ 233,385,247	 ￦ 620,041,218	 ￦ 30,938,523

(3) Changes in investment in jointly controlled entities and associates for the years ended December 31, 2011 and

2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

(*1) Dividends received and others

		 January 1,	A cquisition	 Share of 	 	 December 31,	
Investees	 2011	 (disposition)	 profits (losses)	 Others (*1)	 2011

ORDEG Co., Ltd.	 ￦       21,111,356	 ￦                 -	 ￦    2,099,669	 ￦    (932,881)	 ￦  22,278,144

OCI-Ferro Co., Ltd.	 5,893,305	 -	 2,355,716	 (334,332)	 7,914,689

OCI-SNF Co., Ltd.	 29,741,931	 -	 8,248,237	 (5,440,774)	 32,549,394

Eko Peroxide LLC	 24,133,972	 -	 (1,373,447)	 (734,408)	 22,026,116

Liaoning East Shine
  Chemical Technology Co., Ltd.	 -	 4,409,042	 -	 174,285	 4,583,327

Total	  ￦     80,880,564	 ￦    4,409,042	 ￦   11,330,175	 ￦ (7,268,110)	 ￦ 89,351,670

	

	

		 January 1,	A cquisition	 Share of 	 	 December 31,	
Investees	 2010	 (disposition)	 profits (losses)	 Others (*1)	 2010

ORDEG Co., Ltd.	 ￦      16,394,819	 ￦                 -	 ￦     4,716,537	 ￦                -	 ￦   21,111,356

OCI-Ferro Co., Ltd.	 5,325,780	 -	 734,691	 (167,166)	 5,893,305

OCI-SNF Co., Ltd.	 23,457,772	 -	 8,884,159	 (2,600,000)	 29,741,931

Eko Peroxide LLC	 25,650,841	 -	 (899,874)	 (616,995)	 24,133,972

Total	 ￦     70,829,212	 ￦                 -	 ￦   13,435,513	 ￦ (3,384,161)	 ￦ 80,880,564

	 2010

	 2011

(2) Changes of acquisition costs in property, plant and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 

2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

	

			B  uildings 	M achinery and	
		 Land	 and structures	 equipment	 Others	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦ 497,844,914	 ￦     776,240,224	 ￦  3,204,105,127	 ￦   1,172,665,265	 ￦ 5,650,855,530

Acquisition and capital expenditure	 2,859,045	 33,223,334	 143,905,605	 1,296,046,480	 1,476,034,464

Transfer	 (217,376)	 242,447,714	 1,433,327,974	 (1,674,948,099)	 610,213

Disposal	 (77,054)	 (18,502,785)	 (85,989,150)	 (5,427,556)	 (109,996,545)

Effect of foreign currency translation	 53,886	 2,734,240	 14,671,071	 1,441,269	 18,900,466

Ending Balances	  ￦500,463,415	 ￦ 1,036,142,727	 ￦ 4,710,020,627	 ￦   789,777,359	 ￦7,036,404,128

	 2011



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(3) Changes of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 

2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

12  PLEDGED ASSETS AS COLLATERAL AND PAYMENT GUARANTEES

(1) Pledged assets as collateral

As of December 31, 2011, a portion of the Company’s property, plant and equipment is pledged as collateral for its borrowings from 

the Korea Development Bank and others, up to ￦1,443,268,806 thousand and USD80,200 thousand.

 

(2) Guarantees provided to subsidiaries

Details of guarantees provided between the Company’s subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 

2010 are as follows (In thousands of U.S. dollars and Japanese yen):

(3) Guarantees provided by others

Details of guarantees provided by others as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows 

(In thousands of Korean won and US dollars):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

13  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(1) Details of the carrying amount as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows

(Korean won in thousands): 

	

			B  uildings 	M achinery and	
		 Land	 and structures	 equipment	 Others	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦  482,378,753	 ￦   707,207,697	 ￦ 2,959,459,127	 ￦   476,757,879	 ￦   4,625,803,456

Acquisition and capital expenditure	 11,264,625	 1,136,089	 17,339,003	 1,054,514,535	 1,084,254,252

Transfer	 8,302,771	 74,548,278	 256,225,985	 (340,227,971)	 (1,150,937)

Disposal	 (3,993,835)	 (2,558,388)	 (11,440,742)	 (18,174,000)	 (36,166,965)

Effect of foreign currency translation	 (107,400)	 (4,093,452)	 (17,478,246)	 (205,178)	 (21,884,276)

Ending balances	 ￦ 497,844,914	 ￦ 776,240,224	 ￦3,204,105,127	￦1,172,665,265	 ￦ 5,650,855,530
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Company providing	C ompany provided	 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010	 Purpose

Seoul Guarantee 	 OCI Company							       Contract 

  Insurance	   Ltd. & Elpion 	 ￦ 	 4,167,810	 ￦ 	 10,558,269	 ￦ 	 5,691,035	 fulfillment

Hana Bank	 OCI Company Ltd.	 USD 	 12,267	 USD 	 16,025	 USD 	 22,108	 AP Bond

	 2010

(*1) Elpion Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, recognized impairment loss on equipment for the year ended December 31, 2011.  

		 Buildings and	M achinery and			 
		  structures	 equipment	 Others	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦  240,785,236	 ￦  1,558,337,967	 ￦     57,023,411	 ￦    1,856,146,614

Depreciation	 33,633,942	 397,213,502	 18,676,630	 449,524,074

Impairment cost (*1)	 -	 368,478	 1,098,582	 1,467,060

Disposal	 (8,529,243)	 (84,222,515)	 (2,119,771)	 (94,871,529)

Transfer	 (6,476,780)	 (506,296)	 (716)	 (6,983,792)

Others	 -	 1,721,659	 2,622	 1,724,281

Effect of foreign currency translation	 1,604,728	 7,268,743	 13,488	 8,886,959

Ending balances	 ￦  261,017,883	 ￦ 1,880,181,538	 ￦   74,694,246	 ￦   2,215,893,667

	 2011

(*2) �In 2010, the Parent decided to dispose certain facilities and equipment within a plant site to utilize the space for a new 

plant construction. As the disposed assets are determined to have no value in use, the Parent recognized impairment loss of 

￦7,818,958 thousand as other operating expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 and remove the facilities and equipment 

for the year ended December 31, 2011.

		 Buildings and	M achinery and			 
		  structures	 equipment	 Others	 Total

Beginning balance	 ￦   213,190,885	 ￦    1,310,854,711	 ￦  54,731,928	 ￦   1,578,777,524

Depreciation	 23,942,367	 266,063,862	 12,202,793	 302,209,022

Impairment cost (*2)	 7,311,945	 506,296	 717	 7,818,958

Disposal	 (1,064,080)	 (8,490,121)	 (9,898,414)	 (19,452,615)

Others	 -	 2,027,525	 2,622	 2,030,147

Effect of foreign currency translation	 (2,595,881)	 (12,624,306)	 (16,235)	 (15,236,422)

Ending balances	 ￦ 240,785,236	 ￦ 1,558,337,967	 ￦   57,023,411	 ￦   1,856,146,614

	 2010

	

Company providing	C ompany provided	 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

OCI Company Ltd.	 Shandong OCI Chemical Co., Ltd.	 USD 	 7,000	 USD	  7,000	 USD 	 7,000

OCI Company Ltd.	 OCI Wyoming L.P.		  -		  -	 USD 	 15,300

OCI Enterprises Inc.	 OCI Solar Power LLC	 USD 	 12,050		  -		  -

OCI Materials Ltd.	 OCI Materials Taiwan Co., Ltd.	 USD 	 1,346		  -		  -

OCI Materials Ltd.	 OCI Materials Japan Co., Ltd.	 JPY 	 262,000	  JPY 	  262,000	 JPY 	 262,000

	A mount of guarantees

		  	

	 		I  ndustrial	 Development	  Mining	
	G oodwill	M embership	 property rights	 costs	 reserve	 Others	 Total

Acquisition cost	 ￦ 47,858,072	  ￦ 17,154,194	 ￦ 1,416,589	 ￦16,549,625	 ￦75,253,241	 ￦24,202,974	 ￦182,434,695

Accumulated amortization	 -	 -	 (108,007)	 (9,730,283)	 (23,643,132)	 (2,885,936)	 (36,367,358)

Accumulated impairment	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (3,970)	 (3,970)

Government subsidies	 -	 -	 -	 (819,652)	 -	 -	 (819,652)

Net balances	 ￦47,858,072	 ￦17,154,194	 ￦1,308,582	 ￦ 5,999,690	 ￦51,610,109	￦21,313,068	 ￦145,243,715

December 31, 2011



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

	

	 		I  ndustrial	 Development 	M ining		  	

	G oodwill	M embership 	 property rights	 costs	  reserve	 Others	 Total

Acquisition cost	 ￦ 35,829,762	 ￦ 15,743,819	 ￦   286,872	 ￦ 23,766,388	 ￦ 74,313,637	 ￦ 10,503,255 	￦ 160,443,733

Accumulated amortization	 -	 -	 (195,617)	 (14,663,952)	 (22,471,724)	 (1,214,907)	 (38,546,200)

Accumulated impairment	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (3,970)	 (3,970)

Government subsidies	 -	 -	 -	 (1,147,513)	 -	 -	 (1,147,513)

Net balances	 ￦ 35,829,762	 ￦15,743,819	 ￦    91,255	 ￦  7,954,923	 ￦ 51,841,913	 ￦ 9,284,378	 ￦120,746,050

	 		I  ndustrial	 Development 	M ining		  	

	G oodwill	M embership 	 property rights	 costs	  reserve	 Others	 Total

Acquisition cost	 ￦ 35,829,762	 ￦ 12,617,906	 ￦   277,550	 ￦ 23,433,027	 ￦ 76,186,322	 ￦  9,577,203	 ￦  157,921,770

Accumulated amortization	 -	 -	 (172,307)	 (11,502,039)	 (22,139,725)	 (771,732)	 (34,585,803)

Accumulated impairment	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (3,970)	 (3,970)

Government subsidies	 -	 -	 -	 (1,475,374)	 -	 -	 (1,475,374)

Net balances	 ￦35,829,762	 ￦12,617,906	 ￦   105,243	 ￦ 10,455,614	 ￦54,046,597	 ￦  8,801,501	￦ 121,856,623 

(2) Changes in acquisition cost for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands): 

	 		I  ndustrial	 Development 	M ining		  	

	G oodwill	M embership 	 property rights	 costs	  reserve	 Others	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦ 35,829,762	 ￦ 15,743,819	 ￦   286,872	 ￦ 23,766,388	 ￦ 74,313,637	 ￦ 10,503,255	 ￦ 160,443,733

Acquisition & Capital

  expenditure	 11,557,274	 2,846,244	 1,252,327	 497,000	 -	 12,188,899	 28,341,744

Disposal	 -	 (1,434,645)	 (122,610)	 (7,713,763)	 -	 (67,461)	 (9,338,479)

Effect of foreign 

  currency translation	 471,036	 (1,224)	 -	 -	 939,604	 1,578,281	 2,987,697

Ending balances	 ￦47,858,072	 ￦ 17,154,194	 ￦1,416,589	 ￦16,549,625	 ￦75,253,241	 ￦24,202,974	 ￦182,434,695

	 		I  ndustrial	 Development 	M ining		  	

	G oodwill	M embership 	 property rights	 costs	  reserve	 Others	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦ 35,829,762	 ￦ 12,617,906	 ￦   277,550	 ￦ 23,433,027	 ￦ 76,186,322	 ￦  9,577,203 	￦  157,921,770

Acquisition & Capital

  expenditure	 -	 3,127,513	 11,680	 5,500	 -	 858,170	 4,002,863

Disposal	 -	 -	 (2,358)	 -	 -	 -	 (2,358)

Effect of foreign

  currency translation	 -	 (1,600)	 -	 327,861	 (1,872,685)	 67,882	 (1,478,542)

Ending balances	 ￦35,829,762	 ￦15,743,819	 ￦  286,872	 ￦23,766,388	 ￦74,313,637	 ￦10,503,255	 ￦160,443,733

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(3) Changes in accumulated amortization and impairment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as 

follows (Korean won in thousands): 

Membership, classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, is not subject to amortization. However, is tested for impairment 

on an annual basis.

(4) Allocation of amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows 

(Korean won in thousands): 

(5) Details of cost of research and development for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows

 (Korean won in thousands): 

	

		I ndustrial 	 Development	
		 property rights	 costs	 Mining reserve	 Others	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦  195,617	 ￦    14,663,952	 ￦ 22,471,724	 ￦  1,218,877	 ￦   38,550,170

Amortization	 35,001	 2,452,232	 852,534	 1,979,171	 5,318,938

Disposal	 (122,611)	 (7,713,762)	 -	 (67,461)	 (7,903,834)

Others	 -	 327,861	 -	 -	 327,861

Effect of foreign 

  currency translation	 -	 -	 318,874	 (240,681)	 78,193

Ending balances	 ￦  108,007	 ￦   9,730,283	 ￦ 23,643,132	 ￦ 2,889,906	 ￦  36,371,328

	

		I ndustrial 	 Development	
		 property rights	 costs	 Mining reserve	 Others	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦   172,307	 ￦  11,502,039	 ￦ 22,139,725	 ￦      775,702	 ￦ 34,589,773

Amortization	 22,390	 2,834,052	 561,683	 440,958	 3,859,083

Others	 -	 327,861	 -	 -	 327,861

Disposal	 920	 -	 -	 -	 920

Effect of foreign 

  currency translation	 -	 -	 (229,684)	 2,217	 (227,467)

Ending balances	 ￦  195,617	 ￦   14,663,952	 ￦ 22,471,724	 ￦  1,218,877	 ￦   38,550,170

	 2011	 2010

Cost of production	 ￦  2,324,208	 ￦  1,045,942

Selling and administrative expenses	 2,184,630	 2,004,235

Rental cost	 54	 162

Research and development	 810,046	 808,744

Total	 ￦  5,318,938	 ￦  3,859,083

	 2011	 2010

Research and development	 ￦ 24,018,102	 ￦ 17,388,613

2011 OCI ANNUAL REPORT      100-101 financial review financial statements

December 31, 2010

2011

2010

January 1, 2010

2011

2010



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14  INVESTMENT PROPERTY

(1) Carrying amounts as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010, are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(2) Changes in acquisition cost for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands): 

(5) Fair value of investment property as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands): 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(3) Changes in accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 

2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands): 

(4) Details of income and expenditure for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):  

15  OTHER ASSETS

Details of other assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

			  December 31, 2011

		L and	B uildings and structure	 Total

Acquisition cost	 ￦   56,747,596	 ￦    47,971,240	 ￦ 104,718,836

Accumulated amortization	 -	     (11,476,507)	 (11,476,507)

Net balances	 ￦    56,747,596	 ￦    36,494,733	 ￦    93,242,329

	

			  December 31, 2010

		L and	B uildings and structure	 Total

Acquisition cost	 ￦ 56,291,687	 ￦       52,453,439	 ￦   108,745,126

Accumulated amortization	 -	 (10,768,964)	 (10,768,964)

Net balances	 ￦ 56,291,687	 ￦  41,684,475	 ￦   97,976,162

			  January 1, 2010

		L and	B uildings and structure	 Total

	Acquisition cost	 ￦  56,327,262	 ￦   45,901,324	 ￦ 102,228,586

Accumulated amortization	 -	 (9,588,707)	 (9,588,707)

Net balances	 ￦ 56,327,262	 ￦   36,312,617	 ￦  92,639,879

			  2011

			A  cquisition Cost

		L and	B uildings and structure	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦  56,291,687	 ￦   52,453,439	 ￦   108,745,126

Acquisition and capital expenditure	 -	 285,421	 285,421

Transfers 	 458,009	 (3,831,527)	 (3,373,518)

Disposal	 (2,100)	 (936,093)	 (938,193)

Ending balances	 ￦     56,747,596	 ￦  47,971,240	 ￦ 104,718,836

			  2010

			A  cquisition Cost

		L and	B uildings and structure	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦  56,327,262	 ￦   45,901,324	 ￦ 102,228,586

Acquisition and capital expenditure	 -	 6,263,585	 6,263,585

Transfers 	 -	 521,053	 521,053

Disposal	 (35,575)	 (232,523)	 (268,098)

Ending balances	 ￦ 56,291,687	 ￦ 52,453,439	 ￦  108,745,126

	 2011	 2010

	 Accumulated depreciation	A ccumulated depreciation
	B uildings and structure	B uildings and structure

Beginning balances	 ￦	  10,768,964	 ￦    	 9,588,707

Depreciation		  1,270,394		  1,268,509

Disposal		  (38,229)		  (88,252)

Transfers		  (524,622)		  -

Ending balances	 ￦  	 11,476,507	 ￦	 10,768,964

	               December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

		C arrying 	 	 Carrying 	 	 Carrying 	
		 amount	 Fair value	 amount	 Fair value	 amount	 Fair value

Land	 ￦  56,747,596	 ￦   75,502,655	 ￦  56,291,687	 ￦  72,059,595	 ￦ 56,327,262	 ￦ 70,606,168

Building and structure	 36,494,733	 28,256,930	 41,684,475	 20,328,954	 36,312,617	 22,898,951

		 ￦ 93,242,329	 ￦ 103,759,585	 ￦ 97,976,162	 ￦ 92,388,549	 ￦92,639,879	 ￦  93,505,119

	 2011	 2010

Rental income	 ￦ 5,167,950	 ￦ 6,277,880

Expenditure on operating investment property	 5,251,337	 4,638,107

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010 

CURRENT	

Advance payments	 ￦ 35,300,295	 ￦    7,217,958	 ￦   14,730,398

Prepaid expenses	 15,603,828	 6,115,046	 6,595,363

Others	 29,446,673	 27,147,821	 29,684,314

Subtotal	 80,350,796	 40,480,825	 51,010,075

NON-CURRENT	 		

Prepaid expenses	 737,580	 2,142	 1,202,517

Others	 5,513,982	 5,552,834	 3,709,726

Subtotal	 6,251,562	 5,554,976	 4,912,243

Total	 ￦ 86,602,358	 ￦ 46,035,801	 ￦ 55,922,318
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16  FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(1) Details of financial liabilities as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

			  Annual interest	 December 31,	 December 31,	 January 1,
		  Creditor	 rate (%)	 2011	  2010	 2010

CURRENT			 

Short-term borrowings	 Korea Exchange 

		   Bank and others	 4.36 ~ 7.79	 ￦    505,944,731	 ￦   549,964,203	 ￦   508,640,802

Current portion of 	 Korea Development 

  long-term financial liabilities	   Bank and others	 1.50 ~ 5.64	 136,010,310	 209,895,189	 404,807,842

Discount on bond			   -	 (11,340)	 (115,716)

Stock warrants adjustment			   -	 -	 (2,412,857)

Conversion rights adjustment			   -	 -	 (27,767)

Subtotal			   641,955,041	 759,848,052	 910,892,304

NON-CURRENT					   

Long-term debentures	 Public offered bond	 4.52 ~ 4.74	 250,000,000	 250,000,000	 10,000,000

Discount on bond			   (967,000)	 (1,190,381)	 (23,207)

Long-term borrowings	 Korea Development 

		   Bank and others	 1.36 ~ 6.00	 611,911,362	 576,704,096	 689,521,493

Subtotal			   860,944,362	 825,513,715	 699,498,286

Total			   ￦ 1,502,899,403	 ￦ 1,585,361,767	 ￦ 1,610,390,590

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

17  TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Details of trade and other accounts payable as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

18  RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

(1) Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a defined contribution plan for employees, under which the Company is obligated to make payments to third 

party funds. The employee benefits under the plan are determined by the payments to the funds by the Company and the investment 

earnings from the funds. Additionally, plan assets are managed by third party funds and are segregated from the Company's assets. 

The Company recognized ￦2,712,063 thousands and ￦532,336 thousands of service cost relating to its defined contribution plan in 

the statement of income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

(2) Defined benefit plan

The Company operates a defined benefit plan for employees and according to the plan and employees will be paid their average salary 

amount of the final three months multiplied by the number of years vested and adjusted for salary pay rate and other. The valuation 

of related plan assets and the defined benefit liability are performed by an independent reputable actuary using the projected unit 

credit method.

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010 

CURRENT

Trade payable	 ￦  160,759,131	 ￦ 137,727,883	 ￦   115,119,835

Other account payable	 427,951,232	 527,117,547	 217,244,138

  Discount on present value	 (264,288)	 -	 -

Dividends payable	 38,051	 22,161	 1,708,470

Accrued expenses (interest)	 5,393,035	 5,318,750	 4,862,832

Accrued expenses (others)	 55,328,469	 42,349,185	 38,215,578

Withholdings	 14,464,637	 13,608,596	 13,951,095

Guarantee deposits received	 137,051	 166,832	 238,010

Subtotal	 663,807,318	 726,310,954	 391,339,958

NON-CURRENT	 		

Long-term other account payable	 17,944,416	 78,000	 21,600

  Discount on present value	 (1,757,364)	 -	 -

Long-term accrued expenses	 2,561,873	 1,564,266	 1,762,015

Leasehold deposits received	 12,459,731	 13,177,770	 13,199,107

Subtotal	 31,208,656	 14,820,036	 14,982,722

Total	 ￦ 695,015,974	 ￦ 741,130,990	 ￦ 406,322,680
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(2) The aggregate annual maturities of non-current financial liabilities as of December 31, 2011, exclusive of adjustments 

relating to the discount, are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

A portion of the Company’s property, plant and equipment is pledged as collateral for these financial liabilities (Refer to Note 12).

Year ending December 31	 Debentures	L ong-term borrowings	 Total

		 2013	 ￦                  -	 ￦   28,951,590	 ￦     28,951,590

		 2014	 -	 425,415,217	 425,415,217

		 2015	 150,000,000	 50,963,892	 200,963,892

		 2016	 -	 20,985,161	 20,985,161

		 2017	 100,000,000	 36,242,887	 136,242,887

	After January 1, 2018	 -	 49,352,615	 49,352,615

			  ￦ 250,000,000	 ￦ 611,911,362	 ￦    861,911,362



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

5) Interest income from plan assets are ￦(-)889,651 thousand and ￦3,581,712 thousand for the years ended 

December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

6) Income and loss related to defined benefit plan for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows

(Korean won in thousands):

8) Actuarial gain and loss recognized in comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as 

follows (Korean won in thousands):

10) Defined benefit obligation, net of plan assets, for the latest three years are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

As of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010, accumulated actuarial gains (losses), recognized in other compre-

hension income (loss), are ￦(-)60,540,998 thousand, ￦(-)27,206,375 thousand and ￦(-)20,521,210 respectively.

9) The principal assumptions used for actuarial valuation are as follows:

Description	 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010

Discount rate	 4.80% ~ 6.50%	 4.95% ~ 6.18%

Expected return on plan assets	 5.00% ~ 7.70%	 4.55% ~ 6.48%

Future salary increase rate (including inflation)	 3.25% ~ 5.00%	 3.25% ~ 7.62%

	 2011	 2010

Current service cost	  ￦    20,135,787	 ￦ 18,294,997

Interest cost on plan assets	 11,863,044	 8,558,135

Expected return on plan assets	 (4,950,746)	 (2,950,122)

	  ￦     27,048,085	  ￦ 23,903,010

	 2011	 2010

Carrying amount before tax	 ￦      (43,977,074)	 ￦ (8,448,177)

Tax effect	 10,642,452	 1,763,011

Carrying amount after tax	 ￦ (33,334,622)	 ￦ (6,685,166)
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		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010 

Present value of defined benefit obligation	 ￦  272,481,077	 ￦  201,708,861	 ￦  186,067,358

Fair value of plan assets	 (161,173,404)	 (130,274,389)	 (112,509,332)

Retirement benefit obligation	 ￦ 111,307,673	 ￦   71,434,472	 ￦    73,558,026

1) As of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 amounts recognized in the statements of financial 

position related to retirement benefit obligation are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2) Details of plan assets as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010  are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

Equity securities	 ￦     79,526,884	 ￦           8,373	 ￦                  -

Government bonds	 37,438,987	 1,007,911	 -

Deposits and others	 44,207,533	 129,258,105	 112,509,332

Total	 ￦ 161,173,404	 ￦ 130,274,389	 ￦ 112,509,332

3) Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

		 2011	  2010

Beginning balance	 ￦ 201,708,861	 ￦  186,067,358

Current service cost	 20,135,787	 18,294,997

Interest cost	 11,863,044	 8,558,135

Actuarial gains before tax	 38,136,677	 9,079,767

Employees’ contribution	 7,540,572	 496,036

Benefit paid	 (12,212,550)	 (23,366,033)

Effect of foreign currency translation	 5,308,686	 2,578,601

Ending balance	 ￦ 272,481,077	 ￦ 201,708,861

4) Changes in plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

		 2011	  2010

Beginning balance	  ￦ 130,274,389	 ￦  112,509,332

Expected return on plan assets	 4,950,746	 2,950,122

Actuarial gains (before tax)	 (5,840,397)	 631,590

Employer’s contribution	 33,312,215	 27,767,452

Participant contributions	 2,540,572	 -

Benefits paid	 (6,844,546)	 (12,597,742)

Effect of foreign currency translation	 2,895,308	 (1,701,431)

Other 	 (114,883)	 715,066

Ending balance	 ￦ 161,173,404	 ￦ 130,274,389

7) Details of costs recognized in the statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

	 2011	 2010

Cost of sales	 ￦    21,332,873	 ￦   18,185,574

Selling and administrative expenditure	 5,108,421	 5,050,072

Progress in construction and development cost	 606,791	 667,364

	 ￦   27,048,085	 ￦ 23,903,010

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 December 31, 2009 

Present value of defined benefit obligation	 ￦  272,481,077	 ￦     201,708,861	 ￦      186,067,358

Present value of plan assets	 (161,173,404)	 (130,274,389)	 (112,509,332)

Net liability	 ￦  111,307,673	 ￦   71,434,472	 ￦   73,558,026



		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010 

CURRENT	

Advances received	 ￦            7,589,872	 ￦    8,040,026	 ￦     7,222,043

Others	 (155,211)	 67,298	 296,931

Subtotal	 7,745,083	 8,107,324	 7,518,974

NON-CURRENT		

Long-term advances	 994,425,133	 755,165,666	 725,586,531

Others	 4,782,584	 3,869,296	 6,381,227

Subtotal	 999,207,717	 759,034,962	 731,967,758

Total	 ￦ 1,006,952,800	 ￦    767,142,286	 ￦ 739,486,732

20  OTHER LIABILITIES

Details of other liabilities as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19  PROVISIONS

Changes in provisions for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

		 2011

		R estoration provisions	 Other provisions	 Total 

Beginning balances	 ￦        1,818,364	 ￦     3,645,981	 ￦     5,464,345

  Additional provisions	 2,443,972	 4,780,000 	 7,223,972

  Utilization	 -	 (2,408,398)	 (2,408,398)

  Effect of foreign currency translation	 122,599	 -	 122,599

Ending balances	 ￦         4,384,935	 ￦        6,017,583	 ￦    10,402,518

		 2010

		R estoration provisions	 Other provisions	 Total 

Beginning balances	 ￦                   12,058,547	 ￦   16,509,000	 ￦     28,567,547

  Additional provisions	 112,697	 -	 112,697

  Utilization	 (10,308,163)	 (12,863,019)	 (23,171,182)

  Effect of foreign currency translation	 (44,717)	 -	 (44,717)

Ending balances	 ￦        1,818,364	 ￦    3,645,981	 ￦    5,464,345

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

21  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(1) Checks provided as collateral 

There were no notes or checks provided as collateral as of December 31, 2011.

(2) Litigations and disputes 

There were no significant litigations and disputes as of December 31, 2011.

(3) Guarantees provided to others

As of December 31, 2011, the Company is contingently liable for the payment guarantees it provides to its subsidiaries for their 

respective borrowings, the Company’s maximum exposure is USD 7,000,000 (Refer to Note 12).

(4) Commitments arising from financial transactions

As of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 the Company has commitments with various banks as follows 

(Korean won in thousands, U.S. dollars):

(5) License agreement

Under various technical license and assistance agreements, the Company has royalty payments for technical assistance.

(6) Long-term purchase and supply agreement 

Elpion Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, has entered into a long-term supply contract for wafer with Shinsung Holdings Co., Ltd. and others from 

2009 to 2014. 

Among the various long-term advances the Company has, as of December 31, 2011, ￦987,601,522 thousand relates to the Parent’s 

long-term polysilicon supply contract. In addition, the Parent has entered into a refund guarantee contract with Hana Bank for the 

long-term advances.

financial review financial statements2011 OCI ANNUAL REPORT      108-109

				  December 31,	 December 31, 	 January 1, 	
			 Currency	  2011	 2010	 2010	 Financial institutions

Opening letters of credit	 USD	 110,810,000	 110,009,000	 107,693,000	 Shinhan Bank and others

Bank overdraft	 KRW	 6,000,000	 6,000,000	 6,000,000	 Shinhan Bank and others

Line of credit	 USD	 22,500,000	 17,500,000	 25,000,000	

			 KRW	 219,116,560	 239,366,500	 187,208,720	 Shinhan Bank and others

Accommodation bill discounting	 KRW	 4,400,000	 4,400,000	 44,400,000	 Shinhan Bank and others

Commercial bill discounting	 KRW	 -	 -	 40,000,000	 Hana Bank and others

Forward exchange transaction	 USD	 133,000,000	 81,000,000	 80,000,000	

			 KRW	 30,000,000	 30,000,000	 10,000,000	 Shinhan Bank and others

Standby letter of credit	 USD	 12,266,640	 16,025,040	 87,230,000	 Hana Bank and others

Electronic bill collateralized 	 USD	 -	 -	 500,000,000	 Shinhan Bank and others

  trade accounts receivable	 KRW	 462,000,000	 468,000,000	 318,000,000	 Shinhan Bank and others

Standby L/C related 

  to Revenue Bond	 USD	 -	 20,333,000	 -	 Comerica Bank

Standby L/C related to

  performance guarantee contracts	 USD	 692,750	 693,000	 -	 Comerica Bank



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(7) Derivatives

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has outstanding foreign currency forward contracts with several banks. The details are as follows:

Banks	N umber of contracts			   Selling amount		B  uying amount		C  ontract rates

Kookmin Bank	 10		  USD 	   11,174,814	 USD   	 2,425,500	 KRW 	1127.70~1176.40

Deutsche Bank	 11		  USD 	  13,810,345		  -	 KRW 	1128.90~1178.25

Hana Bank	 2 		  USD 	    2,930,000		  -	 KRW 	1148.10~1158.75

Korea Development Bank	 8		  USD 	   14,035,471		  -	 KRW 	1134.85~1163.35

Korea Exchange Bank	 17		  USD 	  22,602,945	 USD 	 18,267,500	 KRW 	1130.47~1176.60

Woori Bank	 10		  USD 	  13,476,672			   KRW 	1137.24~1158.40

Bank of America	 4 		  USD 	     3,511,402	 USD    	   556,509	 KRW 	1157.40~1166.30

Credit Agricole	 19 		  USD 	  22,086,486	 USD  	  1,890,000	 KRW 	1131.85~1174.10

Credit Suisse	 7 		  USD 	   15,634,620		  -	 KRW 	1133.00~1161.19

RBS	 14 		  USD 	    27,114,164		  -	 KRW 	1130.58~1163.80

Shinhan Bank	 1 		  USD 	       528,660		  -	 KRW 	1168.70~1168.70

Shinhan Bank	 1 		  JPY 	 176,400,000			   KRW 	14.5306~14.5306

Barclays	 9		  USD	    11,414,565			   KRW 	1151.00~1162.43

Comerica Bank	 6		  EUR	      3,469,324	 USD   	 4,550,000	 KRW 	 1.3115

Wells Fargo Bank	 9		  EUR	      4,749,956	 USD	 6,390,000	 KRW 	 1.3453

Total	 112		  USD	 158,320,144	 USD	  34,079,509	

		 15		E  UR	     8,219,280		  -

		 1		  JPY 	 176,400,000		  -	

(8) Allowance for restoration losses

The Company reached an agreement in relation to the disposal of its soda ash by-products in the Company–owned reservoir, with 

certain parties including the Incheon Metropolitan City government on December 31, 2003. The Company has started work related 

to the by-products disposal since 2006 and has been accounting for the estimated cost of this work as an allowance for restoration 

losses. The Parent spun off its Incheon business segment on May, 1, 2008 and succeed its currently appropriated an allowance for 

restoration losses to DCRE.

In accordance with the agreement with the Incheon Metropolitan City, relating to the construction and development of a public 

recreation area, since 2009, the Company recognizes a liability related to its boat yard-transferred to DCRE Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, for  

additional restoration loss of ￦16,509,000 thousand.

The definite effect of this obligation is not recorded in the accompanying financial statements since this liability is accompanied with 

possible future economic indemnities which cannot presently be determined.

(9) Operating lease agreement (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(10) District Tax Assessment

On February 20, 2012, DCRE Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, received a preliminary tax assessment from the Incheon Metropolitan City in the 

amount of ￦172,842,000 thousand, related to land received from the Parent during its spin-off process.

22  SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(1) Common stock and capital surplus

The Parent is authorized to issue 100 million shares of common stock with a par value of ￦5,000 per share. The details of which are 

as follows (Korean won in thousands):

		  December 31, 2011

Within a year		  ￦    6,011,311

1 - 5 years		  12,136,395

After 5 years		  2,216,393

Total		  ￦ 20,364,099

(*1) �The Parent listed GDRs (Global Depositary Receipts) on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Ltd. through issuance of new 

stock and existing treasury stocks. The Parent issued 1,128,081 shares of new common stocks at USD 470.18 per share.

(*2) �On July 22, 2003 and November 10, 2011, in accordance with Article 189 of the Securities and Exchange Law (Currently, the 

Capital Market and Financial Investment Business Act), the Company retired 1,200 thousand shares and 400 thousand shares of 

treasury stock, which amount to ￦14,444,722 thousand and  ￦83,241,601 thousand, respectively, through the appropriation 

of retained earnings. 

			 	 December 31, 2011

			C ommon stock	A dditional	 Other

			 Shares	   Capital 	 paid-in capital	  Capital surplus

Beginning balance	 23,121,290	 ￦ 121,606,450	 ￦ 177,245,356	 ￦ 25,535,288

  Paid-in capital increase (*1)	 1,128,081	 5,640,405	 557,266,197	 -

  Retirement of shares (*2)	 (400,000)	 -	 -	 -

  Gains on sale of treasury stock	 -	 -	 -	 64,367,233

Ending balance	 23,849,371 	 ￦ 127,246,855 	 ￦ 734,511,553 	 ￦ 89,902,521
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			 	 December 31, 2010

			 Common stock	A dditional	 Other

			 Shares	   Capital 	 paid-in capital	  Capital surplus

Beginning balance	 22,884,324	 ￦ 120,421,620	 ￦ 170,031,664	 ￦ 23,479,240

  Exercise of stock option	 236,966	 1,184,830	 7,213,692	 (906,000)

  Gains on sale of treasury stock		  -	 -	 1,061,630

  Conversion of subsidiary’s

    convertible bonds	 -	 -	 -	 1,900,418

Ending balance	 23,121,290	 ￦ 121,606,450	 ￦ 177,245,356	 ￦ 25,535,288



(2) Capital adjustments

Changes of capital adjustments for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands): 

The Parent listed GDRs (Global Depositary Receipts) on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Ltd. through issuance of new stock 

and existing treasury stock. As a result, the Parent disposed of 360,719 treasury stocks. In addition, for the year end of December 31, 

2011, the Company acquired and retired an additional 400 thousand treasury stocks through the appropriation of retained earnings 

and has no treasury stock as of December 31, 2011.

(3) Stock option

Stock options granted to the management of the Company are summarized as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

The Parent decided to modify the stock option above from equity-settled to cash-settled for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 

the stock option above is measured at fair value as of modification date and recognized on a straight-line basis over the implied service 

period (vesting period).

Stock options granted to the management of the subsidiary are summarized as follows:
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(*1) Number of shares granted varies according to the annual management performance.

		 2011	 2010	 2009

Grant date	 January 21, 2011	 January 29, 2010	 April 27, 2009

Company	 OCI Company Ltd.	 OCI Company Ltd.	 OCI Company Ltd.

Number of shares granted (*1)	 4,586 shares	 10,314 shares	 5,814 shares

Description of the stock option	 Common stock	 Common stock	 Common stock

Grant method	 Cash Payment	 Cash Payment	 Cash Payment

Vesting period 	 January 1, 2011	 January 1, 2010	 January 1, 2009

		 ~ December 31, 2013	 ~ December 31, 2012	 ~ December 31, 2011

Valuation method	 Fair value 	 Fair value 	 Fair value  		

		 accounting method	 accounting method	 accounting method

	Value of stock option	 ￦ 1,800,000 thousand	 ￦ 1,923,710 thousand	 ￦ 1,459,435 thousand

	 2008	 2008

Grant date	 Mar 31, 2008	 August 8, 2008

Company	 Elpion Company Ltd.	 Elpion Company Ltd.

Number of shares granted (*1)	 55,000 shares	 50,000 shares

Description of the stock option	 Common stock	 Common stock

Grant method	 Issue of New Shares	 Issue of New Shares

Vesting period 	 April 1, 2010 ~ Mar 31, 2017	 August 8, 2010 ~ August 7, 2017

Valuation method	 Fair value accounting method	 Fair value accounting method

Value of stock option	 ￦16,433 thousand	 ￦14,939 thousand

(*1) Number of shares granted varies accrding to the annual management performance.

The stock options of the subsidiary above are measured at fair value at the grant date and recognized on a straight-line basis over the 

vesting period (the implied service period).

(4) Retained earning

Details of retained earnings as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands): 

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

Legal reserve	 ￦          22,985,533	 ￦       15,588,348	 ￦      11,095,802

Voluntary earned reserve	 1,383,600,000	 847,933,333	 512,600,000

Revaluation reserve	 415,932,404	 415,932,404	 415,932,404

Accumulated actuarial loss	 (60,540,998)	 (27,206,375)	 (20,521,210)

Unappropriated retained earnings	 622,219,329	 531,381,684	 307,189,687

Total	 ￦ 2,364,196,268	 ￦ 1,783,629,394	 ￦ 1,226,296,683

(5) Accumulated other comprehensive income

Details of accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

Gain (loss) on valuation of AFS financial assets	 ￦         19,739,336	 ￦          (9,751,616)	 ￦         (6,170,306)

Gain (loss) on valuation of derivatives	 (211,576)	 -	 (348,757)

Translation gain (loss) on overseas operation	 1,521,839	 (4,731,157)	 -

Share of other comprehensive loss of jointly 

  controlled entities and associates	 (1,177,117)	 (616,996)	 -

Other comprehensive gain (loss)	 (1,070,760)	 (6,270)	 -

Total	 ￦      18,801,722	 ￦     (15,106,039)	 ￦      (6,519,063)

				  Year ended December 31, 2011

			 Treasury stock	 Stock option	 Other capital adjustments	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦   (94,975,338)	 ￦   4,384,420	 -	 ￦  (90,590,918)

Disposal of treasury stock	 94,975,338	 -	 -	 94,975,338

Exercise of stock option	 -	 (4,370,904)	 -	 (4,370,904)

Subsidiary’s capital stock issue costs	 -	 -	 (23,801)	 (23,801)

Ending balances	 ￦                   -	 ￦       13,516	 ￦ (23,801)	 ￦       (10,285)

				  Year ended December 31, 2010

			 Treasury stock	 Stock option	 Total

Beginning balances	 ￦ (100,971,459)	 ￦  1,793,674	 ￦   (99,177,785)

Disposal of treasury stock	 5,996,121	 -	 5,996,121

Exercise of stock option	 -	 2,590,746	 2,590,746

Ending balances	 ￦  (94,975,338)	 ￦  4,384,420	 ￦ (90,590,918)



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

23  SALES

Details of sales for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands): 

24  COST OF SALES AND SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

(1)  Details of cost of sales for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands): 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

	 2011	 2010

Sales of merchandise	 ￦     386,269,544	 ￦      292,083,351

Sales of finished goods	 3,844,797,031	 2,982,042,757

Rental income	 5,167,950	 6,277,880

Outsourcing revenue	 31,401,300	 34,703,412

Service revenue	 7,068,350	 9,702,877

Other revenue	 3,097,774	 609,086

Sales discount	 (1,930,682)	 (3,359,806)

	 ￦  4,275,871,267	 ￦  3,322,059,557

	 2011	 2010

Cost of merchandise	 ￦      199,077,652	 ￦     214,285,686

Cost of finished goods	 2,545,954,205	 1,840,809,174

Cost of rental income	 5,251,337	 4,638,107

Cost of outsourcing	 22,118,582	 22,405,009

Cost of service	 22,128,445	 20,849,018

Others	 3,105,276	 555,590

	 ￦    2,797,635,497	 ￦  2,103,542,584

	 2011	 2010

Warehouse charges	 ￦                     200,166	 ￦                      61,269

Office maintenance fee	 106,228	 156,636

Depreciation	 5,740,373	 4,340,365

Amortization of intangible assets	 2,184,630	 2,004,235

Repair	 1,869,768	 853,969

Insurance	 1,509,574	 1,377,644

Entertainment	  4,109,641	  3,329,803

Advertisement	 3,937,523	 2,191,425

Research and development	 24,018,102	 17,388,613

Supplies	     1,695,965	       980,203

Books and periodicals	 982,490	 778,957

Commission	 16,253,910	 15,487,402

Bad debt	 252,082	 116,060

Service contract expenses	 1,422,316	 665,137

Conference expenses	 528,170	 403,021

Freight	 159,365,577	 167,537,835

Sample expenses	 606,173	 337,414

Packing charges	 147,807	 101,004

Sales commission	 4,010,641	 2,763,259

Sales expenses	 3,644,494	 3,973,148

Others	 1,201,246	 1,159,869

Total	 ￦      360,319,821	 ￦    325,281,147
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(3) Details of expenses classified according to nature for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

	 2011	 2010

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in process	 ￦   (65,455,838)	 ￦        (49,775,851)

Raw materials and consumables used	 2,069,685,960	 1,573,891,396

Sales of merchandise	 425,354,949	 323,460,905

Other costs of products	 33,511,277	 25,483,630

Employee benefits	 359,437,928	 273,334,348

Depreciation and amortization	 456,113,406	 307,336,614

Freight	 162,007,536	 123,198,530

Sales commission and other commission	 38,051,914	 28,936,554

Others	 80,219,780	 61,003,082

Subtotal	 3,558,926,912	 2,666,869,208

Consolidation adjustment	 (400,971,594)	 (238,045,477)

Total	 ￦ 3,157,955,318	 ￦ 2,428,823,731

(2) Details of selling and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

	 2011	 2010

Payroll	 ￦            83,115,082	 ￦      62,300,837

Severance benefits	 7,188,399	 6,495,179

Welfare expenses	 14,636,835	 12,550,830

Travel and transportation expenses	 6,347,483	 5,641,424

Training expenses	 3,681,290	 2,366,296

Maintenance expenses for vehicles	 2,018,645	 1,754,422

Communication charges	 886,873	 771,692

Utilities	 210,451	 148,053

Electric power charge	 669,419	 634,230

Taxes and dues	 4,211,836	 3,922,361

Rental	 3,566,632	 2,688,555



25  OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

(1) Details of other operating income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(4) Details of financial loss for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

	 2011	 2010

Interest expense	 ￦        73,082,357	 ￦    79,042,836

Loss on foreign currency transactions	 54,952,086	 39,029,401

Loss on foreign currency translation	 3,432,143	 2,180,604

Loss on valuation of derivatives	 1,088,337	 1,002,902

Loss on derivative transactions	 27,349,489	 17,058,417

Financial assets impairment loss	 48,864,082	 -

Other financial loss	 574,780	 365,962

Total	 ￦    209,343,274	 ￦ 138,680,122
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	 2011	 2010

Commission income	 ￦       619,523	 ￦  1,089,182

Rental income	 47,100	 19,090

Reversal of allowance for bad debts	 100,480	 211,663

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment	 541,960	 1,410,964

Others	 7,192,680	 799,766

Total	 ￦        8,501,743	 ￦    3,530,665

(5) Details of other non-operating gains for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

(6) Details of other non-operating losses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

	 2011	 2010

Miscellaneous income	 ￦          9,782,972	 ￦        5,753,723

	 2011	 2010

Donations	 ￦          8,912,257	 ￦     4,351,194

Additional provisions	 4,780,000	 -

Miscellaneous loss	 2,201,236	 3,983,734

Total	 ￦      15,893,493	 ￦    8,334,928

26  INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(1) Composition of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

	 2011	 2010

Current income tax payable	 ￦     194,563,579	 ￦ 142,450,668

Current income tax adjustment	 (660,895)	 10,995,176

Prior period income tax adjustment	 -	 254,316

Changes in deferred tax assets	 3,674,520	 (7,762,105)

Tax effect related to the changes in equity	 (18,993,433)	 2,761,057

Income tax expense	 ￦    178,583,772	 ￦ 148,699,112

(2) Details of other operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

	 2011	 2010

Other bad debt expense	 ￦    2,225,642	 ￦       514,656

Loss on valuation of inventories	 377,807	 288,032

Impairment cost of property, plant and equipment	 1,467,060	 7,818,958

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment	 6,592,415	 25,435,204

Loss on disposal of intangible assets	 707,372	 920

Others	 997,568	 2,381,232

Total	 ￦   12,367,864	 ￦ 36,439,002

(3) Details of financial profit for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

	 2011	 2010

Interest income	 ￦        36,291,956	 ￦  16,178,010

Dividend income	 523,855	 750,881

Gain on foreign currency transactions	 47,042,002	 35,951,128

Gain on foreign currency translation	 4,352,238	 2,334,066

Gain on derivative transactions	 33,872,936	 28,175,301

Gain on valuation of derivatives	 865,184	 1,723,670

Gain on disposal of AFS financial assets	 10,447,591	 16,076

Others financial profit	 105	 -

Total	 ￦133,395,867	 ￦  85,129,132



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(2) A reconciliation between income before income tax and income tax expense of the Company are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

(*1) Sum of tax amounts by the Parent and subsidiaries, according to the applicable tax rates

(3) Income tax directly reflected in equity as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(4) Changes in deferred tax assets (liabilities) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

		 January 1,		  Other comprehensive	 Effect of foreign 	 December 31, 
		 2011	 Net income	  income	 currency translation	 2011

DEFERRED TAX DIRECTLY ADJUSTED IN INCOME TAX	 		

Allowance account	 ￦         258,593	 ￦       156,354	 ￦                -	 ￦             -	 ￦           414,947

Depreciation	 5,049,945	 3,200,979	 -	 -	 8,250,924

Gains (losses) on foreign

  exchange translation	 2,186,647	 (302,169)	 -	 -	 1,884,478

Reserve for research and 

  manpower development	 (1,452,000)	 1,452,000	 -	 -	 -

Gains (losses) on

  valuation of derivatives	 (343,559)	 435,947	 -	 -	 92,388

Advanced 

  depreciation provision	 (1,602,509)	 (160,251)	 -	 -	 (1,762,760)

Investment securities	 (99,232)	 (365,053)	 -	 -	 (464,285)

Impairment loss

  of financial assets	 -	 11,825,108			   11,825,108

Jointly controlled 

  entities and associates	 (7,811,499)	 (886,481)	 -	 -	 (8,697,980)

Others	 (20,219,050)	 4,822,474	 (10,642,441)	 57,677	 (25,981,340)

Subtotal	 (24,032,663)	 20,178,908	 (10,642,441)	 57,677	 (14,438,520)

DEFERRED TAX ADJUSTED IN CAPITAL				  

Gains on valuation

  of AFS financial assets	 3,104,247	 33,086	 (9,052,460)	 -	 (5,915,127)

Actuarial gain	 1,378,864	 -	 10,642,451	 -	 12,021,315

Others	 (281,213)	 -	 283,496	 -	 2,283

Subtotal	 4,201,898	 33,086	 1,873,487	 -	 6,108,471

Total	 ￦   (19,830,765)	 ￦ 20,211,993	 ￦ (8,768,954)	 ￦     57,677	 ￦ (8,330,049)

Deferred tax asset	 20,084,843				    11,004,738

Deferred tax liabilities	 ￦      39,915,608				    ￦   19,334,787

	 2011	 2010

Income before income tax expense	 ￦  1,043,322,075	 ￦    817,630,807

Tax expense calculated on book income (*1)	 249,046,162	 198,803,753

Adjustments: 

  Non-taxable income	 (15,594,038)	 (3,781,842)

  Non-deductible expense	 23,517,839	 8,738,048

  Refund (additional) of income tax	 (76,984,090)	 (69,211,158)

  Changes in the assets or liabilities

    relating to deferred taxes and tax rate	 8,888,170	 2,804,765

Others	 (10,290,271)	 11,345,546

Income tax expense	 ￦    178,583,772	 ￦   148,699,112
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	 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010

Capital Adjustment	

  Gain on disposal of treasury stock	 ￦    (20,583,424)	 ￦                  -

Capital Surplus		

  Capital surplus-others	 -	 89,240

Other comprehensive income	

  Gain (loss) on valuation of AFS financial assets	 (9,052,460)	 1,007,173

  Loss on valuation of derivatives	 -	 (98,367)

Retained earnings	

  Actuarial gain (defined benefit obligation)	 10,860,150	 1,760,452

  Actuarial gain (plan assets)	 (217,699)	 2,560

Income tax directly adjusted in capital	 ￦      (18,993,433)	 ￦      2,761,057



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

		 January 1,		  Other comprehensive	 Effect of foreign 	 December 31, 
		 2010	 Net income	  income	 currency translation	 2010

DEFERRED TAX DIRECTLY ADJUSTED IN INCOME TAX	 		

Allowance account	 ￦      42,664	 ￦      215,929	 ￦             -	 ￦              -	 ￦     258,593

Depreciation	 4,205,869	 844,076	 -	 -	 5,049,945

Gains (losses) on foreign

  exchange translation	 5,962,165	 (3,775,518)	 -	 -	 2,186,647

Allowance for restoration	 3,631,980	 (3,631,980)	 -	 -	 -

Reserve for research and 

  manpower development	 (3,226,667)	 1,774,667	 -	 -	 (1,452,000)

Gains on valuation

  of derivatives	 (1,715,016)	 1,371,457	 -	 -	 (343,559)

Advanced depreciation

  provision	 (1,611,237)	 8,728	 -	 -	 (1,602,509)

Investment securities	 (264,865)	 165,633	 -	 -	 (99,232)

Jointly controlled

  entities and associates	 (6,032,852)	 (1,778,647)			   (7,811,499)

Stock warrants adjustment	 (364,660)	 364,660 	 -	 -	 -

Others	 (19,800,617)	 (1,182,860)	 -	 764,427	 (20,219,050)

Subtotal	 (19,173,236)	 (5,623,855)	 -	 764,427	 (24,032,664)

DEFERRED TAX ADJUSTED IN CAPITAL	 			 

Gains on valuation of AFS

  financial assets	 2,097,074	 -	 1,007,173	 -	 3,104,247

Gains on valuation 

  of derivatives	 98,367	 -	 (98,367)	 -	 -

Others	 1,008,412	 -	 89,240	 -	 1,097,652

Subtotal	 3,203,853	 -	 998,046	 -	 4,201,899

Total	 (15,969,383)	 ￦ (5,623,855)	 ￦    998,046	 ￦    764,427	 (19,830,765)

Deferred tax asset	 15,986,150				    20,084,843

Deferred tax liabilities	 ￦ 31,955,533				    ￦  39,915,608

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(5) As of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010 temporary differences not recognized as deferred tax assets 

(liabilities) are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

			 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS			 

Retirement benefit obligation	 ￦      427,193	 ￦       303,881	 ￦       280,674

Allowance account	 88,675	 86,452	 34

Provisions	 -	 -	 10,308,162

Deficit on tax	 95,425,259	 95,693,648	 95,693,648

Subtotal	 ￦  95,941,127	 ￦  96,083,981	 ￦ 106,282,518

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Plan assets	 (427,009)	 (303,881)	 (280,674)

Accrued income	 (52,126)	 (203)	 (18,646)

Subtotal	 (479,135)	 (304,084)	 (299,320)

Total	 ￦ 95,461,992 	 ￦  95,779,897 	 ￦ 105,983,198 
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27  EARNING PER SHARE

(1) Controlling interests’ basic net income per share

Controlling interests’ basic net income attributable to owners per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average 

number of common shares outstanding during the periods.

Controlling interests’ basic net income per share is calculated as follows (Korean won): 

(*1) �The weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are calculated 

as follows:

	 2011	 2010

Controlling net income on common share	 ￦ 768,069,375,317	 ￦  607,912,011,896

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding (*1)	 23,569,248	 22,508,715

Income per share	 ￦              32,588	 ￦              27,008



Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2011: 

8,602,775,640 shares ÷ 365 days = 23,569,248 shares

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2010:

8,215,680,829 shares ÷ 365 days = 22,508,715 shares

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

			  2011

		 Number of	 Number of days 	 Weighted number
		 shares issued	 outstanding	  of shares

	At January 1, 2011	 23,121,290	 365	 8,439,270,850

Treasury stock (carried forward)	 (360,719)	 365	 (131,662,435)

Paid-in capital increase	 1,128,081	 218	 245,921,658

Disposal of Treasury Stock	 360,719	 218	 78,636,742

Retirement of Treasury Stock	 (40,000)	 88	 (3,520,000)

		 (40,000)	 87	 (3,480,000)

		 (48,000)	 86	 (4,128,000)

		 (4,526)	 81	 (366,606)

		 (18,170)	 78	 (1,417,260)

		 (19,000)	 74	 (1,406,000)

		 (23,000)	 73	 (1,679,000)

		 (40,000)	 72	 (2,880,000)

		 (40,000)	 67	 (2,680,000)

		 (32,765)	 66	 (2,162,490)

		 (9,000)	 65	 (585,000)

		 (9)	 61	 (549)

		 (40,000)	 60	 (2,400,000)

		 (45,530)	 59	 (2,686,270)

Weighted Total	 23,849,371	 365	 8,602,775,640

			  2010

		 Number of	 Number of days 	 Weighted number
		 shares issued	 outstanding	  of shares

January 1, 2010	 22,884,324	 365	 8,352,778,260

Treasury stock fund	 (49,636)	 365	 (18,117,140)

Treasury stock fund (disposal)	 49,636	 99	 4,913,964

Paid-in capital increase (B W)	 236,966	 50	 11,848,300

Treasury stock (carried forward)	 (371,959)	 365	 (135,765,035)

Disposal of treasury stock	 11,240	 2	 22,480

Weighted Total	 22,760,571	 365	 8,215,680,829

(2) Controlling interests’ diluted net income per share

Controlling interests’ diluted net income per share for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are calculated as follows 

(Korean won):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010
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	 2011	 2010

Diluted net income on common share	 ￦ 768,069,375,317	 ￦  607,912,011,896

Weighted-average number of common

  and diluted common shares outstanding 	 23,569,248	 22,715,984

Diluted net income per share	 ￦              32,588	 ￦              26,761

	 2011	 2010

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding	       23,569,248	  22,508,715

Weighted-average number of diluted shares outstanding  

  Stock warrants exercised (66th)	 -	 207,269

Weighted-average number of common and

  diluted common shares outstanding	 23,569,248	 22,715,984

28  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

(1) Details of related parties as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

(*1) Include the entities which are not related parties according to K-IFRS 1024 Related party disclosure.

(2) Transactions between the Parent and related parties for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

		 Name of companies

Jointly controlled entities and associates	 ORDEG Co., Ltd., OCI-Ferro Co., Ltd., OCI-SNF Co., Ltd., 

		 Eko Peroxide LLC., Liaoning East Shine Chemical Technology Co., Ltd.

Others (*1)	 OCI Corporation, Nexolon Co., Ltd., UNID Co., Ltd., eTEC E&C Ltd.,

			 Samkwang Glass Co., Ltd., Union Corporation, OCI International Inc.,

			 OCI (ShangHai) Int'l Trading Ltd., Gunjang Energy Co., Ltd.,

			 Philko Peroxide Corporation, Shenyang Censun Chemical Co., Ltd.

		               2011	   2010	                   

		 Sales transaction 	 Purchase transaction	 Sales transaction	 Purchase transaction 
 	 and others	 and others	  and others	 and others

Jointly controlled entities and associates	 ￦      2,749,943	 ￦        372,315	 ￦     4,655,019	 ￦     1,118,683

Others 	 505,928,311	 508,116,774	 387,655,006	 620,652,033

Total	 ￦ 508,648,254	 ￦ 508,489,089	 ￦ 392,310,025	 ￦ 621,770,716



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(3) Outstanding balances as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

(4) Compensation to management

The Parent recorded payroll of ￦5,420,464 thousand and provision for severance indemnities of ￦365,948 thousand as compensa-

tion for the key management of the Company for year ended December 31, 2011.

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

		               2011	   2010	                   

		A ccount receivables	A ccount payables	A ccount receivables	 Account payables	
		  and others	  and others	  and others	  and others

Jointly controlled entities and associates	 ￦     424,516	 ￦       384,300	 ￦    1,299,553	 ￦       730,772

Others 	 54,713,130	 130,277,907	 43,150,825	 319,163,740

Total	 ￦ 55,137,646	 ￦ 130,662,207	 ￦ 44,450,378	 ￦ 319,894,512

(2) Fair value of financial instrument as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010
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29  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(1) Categories of financial instruments as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

		A ccount	 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

Financial Assets:			 

Cash and cash equivalents	 Cash and cash equivalents	 ￦    390,191,268	 ￦   421,253,550	 ￦      424,792,911

Financial assets at FVTPL	 Current derivatives	 951,923	 1,775,191	 7,416,014

Loans and receivables	 Short-term financial instruments	 458,239,963	 197,920,000	 79,745,112

		 Trade and other account receivables	 614,566,769	 459,408,656	 370,009,749

		 Long-term financial instruments	 35,045	 19,000	 1,527,360

		 Non-current trade and other 

		   account receivables	 6,944,535	 6,509,719	 7,122,648

HTM investment	 Short-term financial instruments	 526,770	 264,075	 41,550

		 Long-term financial instruments	 3,912,215	 6,646,540	 3,001,215

AFS financial assets	 Long-term financial instruments	 56,086,805	 61,619,019	 58,981,043

Total		  ￦ 1,531,455,293	 ￦ 1,155,415,750	 ￦    952,637,602

Financial Liabilities:	 			 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL	Current derivatives	 ￦      1,804,886	 ￦         304,004	 ￦            12,122

Amortized cost	 Short-term financial liabilities	 641,955,041	 759,848,052	 910,892,304

		 Trade and other payables	 663,807,318	 726,310,954	 391,339,958

		 Long-term financial liabilities	 860,944,362	 825,513,715	 699,498,286

		 Non-current trade and 

		   other payables	 31,208,656	 14,820,036	 14,982,722

Total		  ￦ 2,199,720,263	 ￦ 2,326,796,761	 ￦ 2,016,725,392

		 	

			  	 December 31, 2011		  December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

		 Carrying value	 Fair value	C arrying value	 Fair value	C arrying value	 Fair value

Financial Assets:	

Cash and cash equivalent	 ￦    390,191,268	 ￦    390,191,268	 ￦   421,253,550	 ￦    421,253,550	 ￦   424,792,911	 ￦    424,792,911

Short-term financial assets	 458,766,733	 458,766,733	 198,184,075	 198,184,075	 79,786,662	 79,786,662

Trade and other receivables	 614,566,769	 614,566,769	 459,408,656	 459,408,656	 370,009,749	 370,009,749

Current derivatives	 951,923	 951,923	 1,775,191	 1,775,191	 7,416,014	 7,416,014

Long-term financial assets	 60,034,065	 60,034,065	 68,284,559	 68,284,559	 63,509,618	 63,509,618

Long-term trade and 

  other receivables	 6,944,535	 6,944,535	 6,509,719	 6,509,719	 7,122,648	 7,122,648

Total	  ￦ 1,531,455,293	 ￦ 1,531,455,293	 ￦ 1,155,415,750	 ￦ 1,155,415,750	 ￦   952,637,602	 ￦   952,637,602

Financial Liabilities:				  

Short-term financial liabilities	 ￦    641,955,041	 ￦    641,955,041	 ￦   759,848,052	 ￦    759,848,052	 ￦   910,892,304	 ￦   910,892,304

Trade and other payables	 663,807,318	 663,807,318	 726,310,954	 726,310,954	 391,339,958	 391,339,958

Current derivatives	 1,804,886	 1,804,886	 304,004	 304,004	 12,122	 12,122

Long-term financial liabilities	 860,944,362	 860,944,362	 825,513,715	 825,513,715	 699,498,286	 699,498,286

Long-term trade and

  other payables	 31,208,656	 31,208,656	 14,820,036	 14,820,036	 14,982,722	 14,982,722

Total	 ￦ 2,199,720,263	 ￦ 2,199,720,263	 ￦ 2,326,796,761	 ￦ 2,326,796,761	 ￦ 2,016,725,392	 ￦ 2,016,725,392

(3) Restricted bank deposits as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

	 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010	R estriction

Short-term financial instruments	 ￦               -	 ￦      146,108	 ￦   2,988,059	 Collateral

Long-term financial instruments	 19,000	 19,000	 19,000	 Checking accounts

Total	 ￦      19,000	 ￦      165,108	 ￦   3,007,059	



(4) Financial income and loss

1) Financial income and loss for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

2) Details of financial income and loss classified by financial instruments for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 

2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

	 2011	 2010

FINANCIAL REVENUE AND INCOME:	  

Interest income	 ￦    36,291,956	 ￦    16,178,010

Dividend income	 523,855	 750,881

Gain on foreign currency transactions	 47,042,002	 35,951,128

Gain on foreign currency translation	 4,352,238	 2,334,066

Gain on transaction of derivatives	 33,872,936	 28,175,301

Gain on valuation of derivatives	 865,184	 1,723,670

Gain on disposal of AFS financial assets	 10,447,591	 -

Others	 105	 16,076

Subtotal	 ￦ 133,395,867	 ￦     85,129,132

FINANCIAL EXPENSE AND LOSS:		

Interest expense	 78,783,818	 79,643,329

Deduction of interest expense :		

  Capitalized financial expenses	 (5,701,461)	 (600,493)

Loss on foreign currency transactions	 54,952,086	 39,029,401

Loss on foreign currency translation	 3,432,143	 2,180,604

Loss on transactions of derivatives	 27,349,489	 17,058,417

Loss on valuation of derivatives	 1,088,337	 1,002,902

AFS financial assets impairment loss	 48,864,082	 -

Others	 574,780	 365,962

Subtotal	 ￦ 209,343,274	 ￦  138,680,122

Total	 ￦ (75,947,407)	 ￦ (53,550,990)
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	 2011	 2010

Interest income:

Long-term and short-term financial instruments	 ￦  35,295,471	 ￦ 15,495,907

HTM financial investments	 205,622	 160,518

Other loans and receivables	 632,086	 331,680

Interest income by effective interest method	 158,777	 189,905

Total	 36,291,956	 16,178,010

Dividend income:		

AFS financial assets	 523,855	 750,881

Total	 523,855	 750,881

Gain on foreign currency translation:		

Cash and cash equivalent	       13,726	        33,658

Trade and other receivables	 4,279,919	 990,836

Long-term and short-term financial liabilities	 -	 1,154,051

Trade and other payables	 58,593	 155,521

Total	 4,352,238	 2,334,066

Interest expense:		

Long-term and short-term financial liabilities: Interest expense on bonds	 9,528,969	 10,284,520

Long-term and short-term financial liabilities: Interest expense on borrowings	 66,363,313	 66,795,328

Capitalized financial expenses	 (5,701,461)	 (600,493)

Interest expense by effective interest method	 2,891,536	 2,563,481

Total	 73,082,357	 79,042,836

Loss on foreign currency translation:	

Cash and cash equivalent	 1,497	 195

Trade and other receivables	 220,298	 1,425,472

Long-term and short-term financial liabilities	 2,340,718	 230,511

Trade payable and other payables	 869,630	 524,426

Total	 ￦    3,432,143	 ￦  2,180,604



1) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to exchange rate fluctuation since it undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies. 

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other than the functional currency as of 

December 31, 2011 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

3) Financial income and loss recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2011 

and 2010 are as follows (Korean won in thousands): 

The Company internally assesses foreign currency risk from changes in exchanges rates on a regular basis. The Company’s sensitivity 

to a 10% increase and decrease in the KRW (functional currency of the Company) against major foreign currencies as of December 

31, 2011 is as follows (Korean won in thousands):

Sensitivity analysis above is conducted for monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other than functional 

currency as of December 31, 2011.

The Company has a financial policy to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency swap contracts to manage for-

eign currency risk from receivables and payables settled with foreign currency. In addition, in order to manage its foreign currency risks 

related to future expected sales and purchase in foreign currency, the Company enters into foreign currency forwards (Note 21).

The value of the unsettled foreign currency forward contracts as of December 31, 2011 is as follows (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

2) Interest rate risk

The Company borrows funds on floating interest rates and exposed to cash flow risk arising from interest rate changes. The book 

value of liability exposed to interest rate risk as of December 30, 2011 is as follows (Korean won in thousands):

The Company internally assesses the cash flow risk from changes in interest rates on a regular basis. Effect of 1% change in interest 

rate, to net income as of December 31, 2011 is as follows (Korean won in thousands):
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		 Valuation gain and loss	A ccumulated other 	 Fair value

		G ain	L oss	 comprehensive income	A ssets	L iabilities

Foreign currency forward	 ￦   865,184	 ￦ 1,088,337	 ￦  (235,767)	 ￦ 951,923	 ￦ 1,804,886

	 2011	 2010

Gain (loss) on valuation of AFS	 ￦  29,490,952	 ￦  (3,581,310)

Gain (loss) on valuation of derivatives	 (235,767)	 348,757

Total	 ￦  29,255,185	 ￦ (3,232,553)

30  RISK MANAGEMENT

(1) Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital, to maintain its ability to continuously provide return to its shareholders and interest parties. Further-

more, the Company puts effort towards reducing capital expenses by optimizing its debt and equity balance; through dividend pay-

ments, redemption of paid in capital to shareholders, issuance of stocks (to reduce liability), or disposal of assets.

The Company monitors capital using a debt ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes long-term 

and short-term borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and short-term financial instruments.

In addition, items managed as capital by the Company as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

(2) Financial risks

The Company is exposed to various financial risks such as market risk (foreign currency, interest rate and price risk), credit risk, and 

liquidity risk. The purpose of risk management of the Company is to identify the potential risks to financial performance and minimize 

those risks to a degree acceptable to the Company.

The board of directors approved the Company’s financial risk management policy to be managed by the treasury department of the 

Parent, who collaborates with other departments to identify, assess and evade those financial risks.

		 December 31, 2011	 December 31, 2010	 January 1, 2010

Total borrowings	 ￦ 1,503,866,403	 ￦  1,586,563,488	 ￦  1,612,970,137

Less: Cash and cash equivalents	 390,191,268	 421,253,550	 424,792,911

Borrowings, net	 1,113,675,135	 1,165,309,938	 1,188,177,226

Total liabilities	 3,484,874,562	 3,308,483,659	 2,929,795,251

Total shareholders’ equity	 ￦ 3,720,138,584	 ￦  2,287,732,309	 ￦ 1,676,479,698

Net borrowings to equity ratio	 30%	 51%	 71%

Debt ratio	 94%	 145%	 175%

	G ain (loss) from 10% increase 	 Gain (loss) from 10% decrease 

Currency	 against foreign currency	 against foreign currency

USD	 ￦	 12,693,996	 ￦ 	(12,693,996)

EUR		  (36,517)		  36,517

JPY		  844,039		  (844,039)

Total	 ￦	 13,501,518	 ￦ 	(13,501,518)

		 1% increase	 1% decrease

		G ain (Loss)	N et Asset	G ain (Loss)	N et Asset

Borrowings	 ￦  (12,799,749)	 ￦  (12,799,749)	 ￦  12,799,749	 ￦  12,799,749

	 December 31, 2011

Borrowings (floating interest rates)	 ￦ 1,279,974,935

Currency	A ssets	L iabilities

USD	 ￦  319,347,049	 ￦    192,407,085

EUR	 757,566	 1,122,737

JPY	 10,014,499	 1,574,107

Total	 ￦  330,119,114	 ￦   195,103,929



3) Price risk

The Company is exposed to price risks from AFS equity instruments. As of December 31, 2011, fair value of AFS equity instruments 

is ￦54,210,151 thousand and when all the other variables are constant and when the price of equity instrument changes by 10%, 

the effect to equity will be ￦5,421,015 thousands (before tax effect).

4) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to risk of financial losses to the Company when the counterpart defaults on the obligations of the contract. Credit 

risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivatives, bank and financial institution deposits as well as receivables and firm commit-

ments. As for banks and financial institutions, the Company is making transactions with reputable financial institutions; therefore, 

the credit risk from it is limited. For ordinary transactions, customer's financial status, credit history and other factors are considered 

to evaluate their credit status. 

Maximum exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2011 is as follows (Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

The impaired financial assets as of December 31, 2011 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

5) Liquidity risk

The Company establishes short-term and long-term fund management plans. The Company then analyzes and reviews actual cash 

out flow and its budget to match the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Company believes that financial liability 

may be redeemed by cash flow arising from operating activities and financial assets.

Maturity analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities according to its remaining maturity as of December 31, 2011 is as follows

(Korean won in thousands):

Maturity analysis above is based on the book value and the earliest maturity date by which the payments should be made and in-

cludes principal cash flow only.

(3) Estimation of fair value

The fair values of financial instruments (i.e., financial assets held for trading and financial assets available for sale) traded on active 

markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices. The Company uses the closing price as the quoted market price for 

its financial assets.

The fair values of financial instruments not traded on an active market (i.e., over-the-counter derivatives) are determined using a valua-

tion technique. The Company uses various valuation techniques using assumptions based on current market conditions. The fair values 

of long-term liabilities and financial liabilities available for settlement are determined using prices from observable current market 

transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments. Where such prices are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis or other 

valuation technique is performed to measure their fair values. 

The fair values of trade receivable and trade payables are approximated as their carrying value less impairment loss. The Company 

estimates the fair values of financial liabilities as the present value of future contractual cash flows discounted based on current market 

rates applied to similar financial instruments. 

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are grouped into Levels 1 to 3, based on the 

degree to which the fair value is observable, as described below:

• Level 1: �Fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2: �Fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

• Level 3: �Fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not 

based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010
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(*1) Excludes AFS investments

		 Within 90 days	 90 ~ 180 days	 180 days ~ 1 year	A fter 1 years	A mount

Short-term financial assets	 ￦   83,366,733	 ￦ 230,100,000	 ￦ 145,300,000	 ￦               -	 ￦      458,766,733

Accounts receivable 

  and other receivables	 559,542,165	 45,534,551	 5,734,769	 3,755,284	 614,566,769

Current derivatives	 951,923	 -	 -	 -	 951,923

Long-term financial assets (*1)	 79,935	 390	 22,555	 3,844,380	 3,947,260

Long-term trade

  and other receivables	 1,791,382	 1,304,941	 556,080	 3,292,132	 6,944,535

Total	 ￦ 645,732,138	 ￦ 276,939,882	 ￦   151,613,404	 ￦ 10,891,795	 ￦ 1,085,177,220

		 Within a year	 1 - 5 years	A fter 5 years	 Total

Floating rate financial instrument	 ￦     591,783,639 	 ￦  559,318,075 	 ￦   78,787,520 	 ￦  1,229,889,234 

Fixed rate financial instrument	 50,171,402 	 116,997,785 	 106,807,982 	 273,977,169 

Trade and other accounts payable	 652,625,499 	 32,966,020 	 11,446,107 	 697,037,626 

Total	 ￦ 1,294,580,540 	 ￦ 709,281,880 	 ￦ 197,041,609 	 ￦ 2,200,904,029 
		 Carrying amount	 Accumulated	 Carrying amount
		 before impairment loss	  impairment loss	 (maximum exposed)

Financial assets at FVTPL	 ￦            951,923	 ￦                 -	 ￦            951,923

Loans and receivables	 1,086,175,953	 (6,389,641)	 1,079,786,312

HTM investment	 4,438,985		  4,438,985

Total	 ￦ 1,091,566,861	 ￦  (6,389,641)	 ￦    1,085,177,220

(*1) Excludes AFS investments

Aging schedule of financial assets not impaired as of December 31, 2011 is as follows (Korean won in thousands):

		 Normal financial assets	I mpaired financial assets	 Total

Short-term financial assets	 ￦    458,766,733	 ￦                 -	 ￦      458,766,733

Trade and other receivables	 614,566,769	   4,167,558	     618,734,327

Current derivatives	 951,923	 -	 951,923

Long-term financial assets (*1)	 3,947,260	 -	 3,947,260

Long-term trade and other receivables	 6,944,535	 2,222,083	 9,166,618

Total	 ￦ 1,085,177,220	 ￦    6,389,641	 ￦ 1,091,566,861



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1) Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value as of December 31, 2011, 

December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010, date of transition are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

31  BORROWING COST

Capitalized borrowing costs in connection with construction-in-progress for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are 

￦5,701,461 thousand and ￦600,493 thousand, respectively. 

Since those borrowing costs are resulted from specific borrowings, the Company did not calculate a capitalization interest rate.

32  SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(1) Cash flows from operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010
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2) Changes in Level 3 financial assets for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

	 2011	 2010

Beginning balance	 ￦   9,860,921	 ￦    2,634,433

Change of consolidation scope	 -	 -

Other comprehensive loss	 -	 (1,407)

Purchases	 2,774,734	 7,450,642

Disposals	 (14,512,309)	 (222,747)

Ending balance	 ￦   1,876,654	 ￦  9,860,921

	 2011	 2010

Net income	 ￦    864,738,303	 ￦    668,931,695

Adjustments:	 742,474,963	 563,591,826

Income tax expense	 178,583,772	 148,699,112

Payroll (stock option)	 -	 2,590,745

Employee benefits	 27,048,085	 23,903,010

Depreciation	 450,794,467	 303,477,531

Amortization of intangible assets	 5,318,938	 3,859,083

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment	 6,592,415	 25,435,204

Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment	 1,467,060	 7,818,958

Loss on disposal of intangible assets	 707,372	 920

Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment	 1,467,060	 7,818,958

Loss due to impairment inventory	 377,807	 288,032

Loss on restoration	 7,223,972	 112,697

Financial expenses	 126,481,067	 82,230,263

Bad debt expense	 252,082	 116,060

Other bad debt expense	 2,225,642	 514,656

Other operating expense	 -	 606,398

Loss on investments of jointly controlled entities and associates	 1,373,448	 899,874

Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts	 (100,480)	 (211,663)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment	 (541,960)	 (1,410,964)

Financial revenue	 (52,625,102)	 (21,002,703)

Gain on investments of jointly controlled entities and associates	 (12,703,622)	 (14,335,387)

	 December 31, 2011	

	 Fair value	                   

		L evel 1	L evel 2	L evel 3	 Total

Derivative instruments assets	 ￦                -	 ￦     951,923	 ￦              -	 ￦      951,923

AFS investment	 54,210,151	 -	 1,876,654	 56,086,805

Total	 ￦   54,210,151	 ￦     951,923	 ￦   1,876,654	 ￦ 57,038,728

Derivative instruments liabilities	 ￦                -	 ￦ 1,804,886	 ￦              -	 ￦  1,804,886

				 

	 December 31, 2010	

	 Fair value	                   

		L evel 1	L evel 2	L evel 3	 Total

Derivative instruments assets	 ￦                -	 ￦   1,775,191	 ￦              -	 ￦   1,775,191

AFS investment	 51,758,098	 -	 9,860,921	 61,619,019

Total	 ￦  51,758,098	 ￦   1,775,191	 ￦   9,860,921	 ￦ 63,394,210

Derivative instruments liabilities	 ￦                -	 ￦    304,004	  ￦              -	 ￦      304,004

		 January 1, 2010	

		 Fair value	                   

		L evel 1	L evel 2	L evel 3	 Total

Derivative instruments assets	 ￦                -	 ￦  7,416,014	 ￦              -	 ￦    7,416,014

AFS investment	 56,346,581	 -	 2,634,462	 58,981,043

Total	 ￦ 56,346,581	 ￦  7,416,014	 ￦  2,634,462	 ￦     66,397,057

Derivative instruments liabilities	 ￦                -	 ￦      12,122	 ￦              -	 ￦        12,122



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(2) Significant transactions not affecting cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

(Korean won in thousands):

33  Subsequent event

The issuance of financial statements of the company was permitted by board of director of the Company at February 29, 2012.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010

	 2011	 2010

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:	 ￦     (19,721,687)	 ￦         (70,710,917)

Increase in trade receivables	 (163,748,737)	 (141,162,559)

Increase in other receivables	 (15,760,992)	 (36,089,133)

Increase in inventories	 (139,319,867)	 (31,715,967)

Decrease in derivative assets	 1,723,670	 7,139,614

Decrease (increase) in other current assets	 (37,059,084)	 9,518,657

Decrease (increase) in non-current trade and other receivables	 (2,498,772)	 729,684

Increase in other non-current assets	 (101,751)	 (331,353)

Increase in trade payables	 40,195,799	 88,988,450

Increase in other account payables	 79,188,823	 57,818,546

Increase (decrease) in current derivative liabilities	        156,351	          (12,122)

Decrease in other current liabilities	 (439,333)	 (421,538)

Increase (decrease) in non-current trade and other account payables	 14,273,011	 (283,888)

Increase in other non-current liabilities	 240,102,664	 27,961,945

Decrease in provisions	 (2,408,398)	 (23,171,182)

Increase in employee benefit plan assets	 (17,426,559)	 (6,288,488)

Increase in government subsidies	 (15,059)	 (25,550)

Payment of stock option exercise	 (4,370,903)	 -

Payment of severance indemnities	 (12,212,550)	 (23,366,033)

Cash flows from operating activities:	 ￦ 1,587,491,579	 ￦  1,161,812,604

	 2011	 2010

Reclassification of construction-in-progress to machinery	 ￦ 1,391,449,344	 ￦ 256,708,584

Reclassification of construction-in-progress to buildings	 106,393,886	 71,063,159

Reclassification of construction-in-progress to structures	 116,998,693	 3,433,209

Reclassification of construction-in-progress to other tangible assets	 13,650,702	 1,477,284

Reclassification of machinery in transit to construction-in-progress	 23,250,332	 7,478,044

Reclassification of long-term borrowings of current maturities 	 58,333,320	 -

Deferred Acquisition of property, plant and equipment	 21,409,780	 -

Gain on valuation of investment securities 

  (other comprehensive income)	 38,543,412	 4,588,482

Reclassification of current maturities of long-term borrowings	 98,531,701	 233,492,739

Reclassification of current maturities of long-term other account payable	 27,994,934	 -

Retirement of treasury stock	 83,241,601	 -
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Governance Board of Directors

The nature of our businesses means that investments tend to be large and payback 

cycles long. This is why it is imperative that decisions be made with a thorough 

analysis of long-term market and customer trends to ensure quality, sound growth. 

A prime example of this is our entrance into the polysilicon business in 2008 and 

subsequent production capacity expansions over the past three years. These invest-

ments were made only after completing a comprehensive analysis and securing 

long-term contracts with customers. This deliberate, conservative approach contin-

ues to serve us well as we continue to evaluate future investments in polysilicon as 

well as new businesses such as fumed silica vacuum insulation panels and sapphire 

ingots for LEDs.

The OCI board of directors has ultimate responsibility for the administration of our 

affairs and ensuring shareholder and investor value is maximized. Our articles of 

incorporation provide for a minimum board size of three and a maximum size of 

eleven, more than half of whom must be outside directors. In 2011, our board had 

eight directors, four of whom were outside directors. These outside directors play 

an essential role in our governance structure, providing valuable expertise as well 

as objective feedback that reinforces our commitment to transparent, conservative 

decision-making that is the foundation of our continued success. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE     
Yong Hwan Kim, Sun Won Park, Jong Sin Kim

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
Soo Young Lee, Woo Sug Baik, Sang Yeol Kim, Woo Hyun Lee, Jong Sin Kim	

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Soo Young Lee, Yong Hwan Kim, Sun Won Park, Hyoung Cho

OUTSIDE DIRECTOR NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Soo Young Lee, Sang Yeol Kim, Yong Hwan Kim, Sun Won Park, Jong Sin Kim, Hyoung Cho 

COMMITTEEs

SUN WON PARK
Outside Director

- �Professor, Department of Chemical and Biomolecular 	
Engineering, KAIST

- �Dean, Office of University-Industry Cooperation 
KAIST

- �Former Director, KAIST Development Foundation

JONG SIN KIM
Outside Director

- President, Industry-Academia-Government 
  Collaborative Education Course, Sanhakyeon Center
- Former Secretary-General, Board of Audit and 
  Inspection of Korea
- �Former Commissioner and Acting Chairman	

Board of Audit and Inspection of Korea

Hyoung Cho
Outside Director

- Professor, Sociology at Ewha Womans University
- Director, Korean Women's Institute
- Chairman, Korea Foundation for Women

YONG HWAN KIM
Outside Director

- Director, KT&G Welfare Foundation
- Representative Lawyer, Law Office of Kim & Park Co.
- Former Prosecutor
- �Former Advisor, Korea International Trade Law 		

Association

SOO YOUNG LEE
Chairman and Representative Director

- Chairman, OCI Enterprises
- Former Chairman, Korea Employers’ Federation
- Former Chairman, Korea Specialty Chemical Industry
  Association

SANG YEOL KIM
Vice Chairman and Director

- Former Executive Vice Chairman, Korea Chamber of 
  Commerce and Industry

WOO HYUN LEE
Chief Marketing and Operating Officer and Director

- Senior Executive Vice President, OCI
- Former Vice President, CSFB (Hong Kong)
- Former Managing Director, Capital Z Partners (Seoul)

WOO SUG BAIK
President, CEO and Representative Director

- Former Director, North American Chemical Company
- Former President and CEO, eTEC
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Date of Establishment

November 8, 1959

Head Office

OCI Company Ltd.
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50, Sogong-dong, Jung-gu

Seoul 100-718, Korea
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STOCK INFORMATION
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